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Lori A. Weaver

Commissioner

Kaljn S. Fox
Director

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION FOR BEHA VIORAL HEALTH

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301
603-271-9544 1-000-852-3345 Ext. 9544

Fax:603-271-4332 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov

October 2. 2023

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Division for Behavioral Health,
to enter Into a Retroactive, Sole Source amendment to an existing contract with the vendor listed
below, in bold, for the provision of public guardianship sen/ices, by increasing the price limitation
by $188,702 from $13,167,923 to $13,356,625 with no change to the contract completion date of
June 30, 2024, effective retroactive to July 1, 2023 upon Governor and Council approval. 100%
General Funds.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on June 24, 2020, item #18
and most recently amended with Governor and Council approval on June 29, 2022, item #24.

Contractor

Name

Vendor

Code

Area

Served

Current

Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised

Amount

Office of Public

Guardian

166528-

8001
Concord, NH $10,369,995 $188,702 $10,558,697

Tri-County
Community Action

Program

177195-

B009
Berlin, NH $2,797,928 $0 $2,797,928

Total: $13,167,923 $188,702 $13,356,625

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Year 2024, with the authority
to adjust budget line items within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years
through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

See attached fiscal details.

EXPLANATION

This request is Retroactive because the Department was unable to start the amendment
process until the request for funds was approved through the state budget, which was effective
July 1, 2023. This request is Sole Source because MOP 150 requires all amendments to
agreements previously approved as sole source to be identified as sole source.

The purpose of this request is to increase the per diem rate the Department will reimburse
the Contractor for public guardianship services from $8.94 to $9.49 per ward, per day. In addition,
the number of Bureau of Elderly and Adult Sen/ices (BEAS) wards is increasing by two (2) from
47 to 49, and the Long Term Supports and Services/Division for Behavioral Health (LTSS/DBH)
wards is increasing by five (5) from 790 to 795.
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His Excellency, (^vemor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council
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Approximately'1,124 individuals wilt be served through June 30, 2024.

Public guardianship services are necessary to meet the State's statutory obligations to
safeguard incapacitated individuals who are in state institutions as well as in comrriunrty mental
health and developmental service programs, statewide. Services provided ensure that the
guardianships are maintained and limited In accordance with the standards embodied in RSA
464-A;

The Contractor will continue to mentor and train family members who are willing to serve
as guardians but whoTequire a period of support. Pr^oviding this support will remove the need for
a public guardian in these cases, which results in a fiscal savings due to not needing to engage
permanent public guardianship services.

The Departmerit will continue monitoring services through the required quarterly and
annual Contractor reporting.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, the Department would be out
of compliance with the r^uirements of NH RSA 135-C;60, NH RSA 171-A:10, II, and NH RSA
161*F:52. Additionally, individuals with mental illness, developmental disabilities and
incapacHated adults who are abused, neglected or exploited, would be left at risk of substantial
harm because of their Inability to provide their own food, shelter, health care, safety, or to manage
their personal affairs.

Area served; Statewide.

* "Y" '"-r" ■ .'•"r •" - [ - ' ■ f

Respectfully submitted.

Lori A. Weaver U
Commissioner

^le^portmtni'of Healih and Human Seroices\Mi6sion is to'join communities and (amUies
/or cUixena, to achieat Health and independence.
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Fiscal Detail Sheet

Guardianship Services {SS-2021-D6H-01-GUARO-01-A02)

TrI-County Community Action Program

05-95-92-922010-4114 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT.

BUREAU OF MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES, GUARDIANSHIP SVCS

VC: 177195-B009

HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV,

State

Fiscal

Year

Class 1.

Account
Class Title Job Number Current Budget

Increased

(Decreased)

Amount

Revised Budget

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92204114 $699,482.00 $0 $699,482.00

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92204114 $699,482.00 $0 $699,482.00

2023 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92204114 $699,482.00 $0 $699,482.00

2024 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92204114 $699,482.00 $0 $699,482.00

Total $2,797,928.00 $0 $2,797,928.00

Office of Public Guardian VC: 166528rB001

05-95-92-922010-4114 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT. HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV,

BUREAU OF MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES, GUARDIANSHIP SVCS

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title Job Number Current Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised Budget

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92204114 $2,320,162.50 $0 $2,320,162.50

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92204114 $2,320,162.50 $0 $2,320,162.50

2023 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92204114 $2,348,775.00 $0 $2,348,775.00

2024 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92204114 $2,348,775.00 ($868,870) $1,479,905.00

Subtotal $9,337,875.00 ($868,870) $8,469,005.00

05-95-48-'

DiV.GRA

481010-9255 H

NTS FOR see

5ALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES

AL SVC PROG. SOCIAL SERVIC

HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT, HHS: ELDERLY & ADULT SVCS

ES BLOCK GRANT

State

Fiscal

Year

Class I

Account
Class Title Job Number Current Budget

Increased

(Decreased)

Amount

Revised Budget

2021 074-500589 Grants For Pub Asst And Rel 48130201 $130,047 $0 $130,047

2022 074-500589 Grants For Pub Asst And Rel 48130201 $130,047 $0 $130,047

2023 074-500589 Grants For Pub Asst And Rel 48130201• $156,939 $0 $156,939

2024 074-500589 Grants For Pub Asst And Rel 48130201 $156,939 $12,790 $169,729

Subtotal $573,972 $12,790 $586,762

05-95-93-923010-5947 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT. HS: DLTSS DEVELOPMENTAL

SVCS, DIV OF DEVELOPMENTAL SVCS, PROGRAM SUPPORT

State

Fiscal

Year

Class 1

Account
Class Title Job Number Current Budget

Increased

(Decreased)

Amount

Revised Budget

2023 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 48130201 $229,074 $0 $229,074

2024 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 48130201 $229,074 $1,044,782 $1,273,856

Subtotal $458,148 $1,044,782 $1,502,930

, Total $10,369,995 $188,702 $10,558,697

1  Grand Totall $13,167,9231 $188,7021 $13,356,6251

lof 1
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #2

This Amendment to the Guardianship Services contract is by and between the State of New Hampshire,
Department of Health and Human Services ("State" or "Department") and the Office of Public Guardian
("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 24, 2020 (Item #18), as amended on June 29, 2022 (Item #24), the Contractor agreed to perform
certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in
consideration of certain sums specified: and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, the Contract may be amended upon written
agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract, and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows;

1. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$10,558,697

2. Modify Exhibit B, Scope of Services, Subsection 1.3. Guardianship and Protection Services,
Paragraph 1.3.4. to read:

1.3.4. For persons referred to Contractor by the Department's Office of Client and Legal Services
pursuant to NH RSA 136-C:60 and NH RSA 171-A:10 II, the Contractor shall serve the
current total of 790 wards receiving guardianship services as well as any new persons
referred for services, in accordance with Paragraph 1.1.7 above, for a total of up to 795
wards during the contract period.

3. Modify Exhibit B, Scope of Services, Subsection 1.3. Guardianship and Protection Services,
Paragraph 1.3.6. to read:

1.3.6. The Contractor shall provide guardianship services for no more than 49 persons, as
referred by the Bureau of Elderly and Adult Services pursuant to NH RSA 161-F:52, at
any point in time during the contract period.

4. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, Subsection 3.1, to read:

3.1. The per diem reimbursement rate for the provision of guardianship over the person services
or guardianship over the estate services, as approved by the Office of Client and Legal
Services for all Bureau of Mental Health Services or Bureau of Developmental Services wards,
shall be $9.49 per ward, per day, for up to 795 wards, as follows:

3.1.1. The per diem rate shall be $9.49 per ward, perday, for guardianship over the person
services.

3.1.2. The per diem rate shall be $9.49 per ward, per day, for guardianship over the estate
services.

• 3.1.3. In the instance when the Contractor Is the guardian over the person and guardian
over the estate of a ward, the Department shall reimburse the Contractor for each
service in accordance with 3.1.1 and 3.1.2 above.

5. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, Subsection 3.3, to read:

3.3 The per diem reimbursement rate for the provision of guardianship over the person services
or guardianship over the estate services as requested by the Bureau of Elderly and Adult
Services shall be $9.49, per ward, per day, for up to 49 wards, as follows:

3.3.1. The per diem rate shall be $9.49 per ward, per day, for guardianship c[vem|he
Office of Public Guardian A-S-1.3 Contractor Initials ^
SS-2021-DBH-01-GUARD-01-A02 Page1of4 Date 10/10/2023
eff. 7.12.23 '
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person services.

3.3.2. The per diem rate shall be $9.49 per ward, per day, for guardianship over the
estate services.

3.3.3. In the instance when the Contractor is the guardian over the person and guardian
over the estate of a ward, the Department shall reimburse the Contractor for each
service in accordance with 3.3.1 and 3.3.2 above.

Office of Public Guardian A-S-1.3 Contractor Initials

SS-2021-DBH.01-GUARD-01-A02 Page 2 of 4 Date 10/10/2023

(A

eff. 7.12.23
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All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective retroactive to July 1, 2023, upon Governor and
Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below.

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

10/17/2023

Date

—OocuSigncd by;

iCUjA S. Fox

Namei^tja s. Fox

Title: Di rector

Office of Public Guardian

10/10/2023

Date

Oocu3lgn«d by:

Name"^™^"'^"°"
Title: Executive Director

Office of Public Guardian

SS-2021-DBH-01-GUARD-01-A02

A-S-1.3

Page 3 of 4
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

OocuS>8n>d by:

10/19/2023

Diti ^ , Name':'^WMV«'^uarino
Title; Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Office of Public Guardian A-S-1.3

SS-2021-DBH-01-GUARD-01-A02 Page 4 of 4
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State of New Hampshire
'i

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, David M. Scanlan, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that OFFICE OF PUBLIC

GUARDIAN is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on July 14, 1983. 1

further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secrctaiy of State's office have been received and is in good standing as

far as this office Is concerned.

Business ID: 30453

Certificate Number: 0006326753

SI

©:2

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF.

1 hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 27th day of September A.D. 2023.

David M. Scanlan

Secretary of State



CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

I  Rooer P. Jobin . hereby certify that
(Name of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC; cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected Clerk/Secretary/Officer of Office of Public Guardian .
(Corporation/LLC Name)

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on September 21.2023 . at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

(Date)

VOTED: That Linda Mallon. Executive Director (may list more than one person)
(Name and Title of Contract Signatory)

is duly authorized on behalf of Office of Public Guardian to enter into contracts or agreements with the State
(Name of Corporation/ LLC)

of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and all
documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which
may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to eff^ the purpose of this vote.

3. 1 hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains In full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority was valid thirty (30)
days prior to and remains valid for thirty (30) days from ttie date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify
that it is understood that the State of New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s)
listed at>ove currently occupy the position(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To
tPe extent that there are any limits on the authority of any listed indiyidijal to bind the corporation in contracts with
the State of New Hampshire, all such limitations are expressly statfidh^In. k ^

VDated:_tg^|ZXj|^ZS
SIg
Na

TUe:

of Elected Officer

oger P. Jobin
President of Board of Directors

Rev. 03/24/20
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CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MMEXVYYYY)

9/27/2023

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES

.  BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER. AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pplicy{les) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the
certificate holder In lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER

THE. ROWLEY AGENCY LLC

45 Constitution Avenue

P.O. Box 511

Concord NH 03302-0511

NAME*''' Rachel Giunta
(603)224-2562

•nrmFss- rffiuntae rowleyagency. com

INSURER(S) AFFOROINO COVERAGE NAIC •

INSURERA: Ohio Security Company 24082

INSURED

Office of Public Guardian

2 Pillsbury Street

Suite 400

Concord NH 03301

iN8URERe;0hio Casualty Contpanv 24074

INSURERc: Eastern Alliance Insurance Group

INSURERD: Zurich American Insurance Co.

INSURER e:

INSURER F ;

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD

INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS

CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN tS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.

EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR
TYPE OF INSURANCE

AODL
iNsn

SUBR
vwn POUCY NUMBER

POLICY EFF
iMM/DDPrrm

POLICY EXP
(MMmO/VYYYI LIMITS

A

X COMMERCIAL CaNERAL LIABILITY

€ 1 X 1 OCCUR
BZS(24)59482402 2/5/2023 2/5/2024

EACH OCCURRENCE %  1,000,000

CLAIMS-MAO
DAMAGE TO RENTED $  1,000,000

MED EXP (Any one paraon) s  15,000

PERSONAL I AOV INJURY $  1,000,000

GENV AGGREGATE UMIT APPLIES PER; GENERALAGGREGATE t  2,000,000

X POLICY 1 1 JE^T 1 1 LOC
OTHER;

PRODUCTS • COMP/OP AGO {  2,000,000

HaadMon-ownad S  1,000,000

AUTOMOBILE LIABIUTY COMBINED SINGLE UMIT
$

ANY AUTO

HEDULEO

TOS
N-OWNEO

TOS

BODILY INJURY (Per peraon) s

AU OVWED
AUTOS

HIRED AUTOS

sc
Al

BODILY INJURY (Per acddanl) s

NC
Al

PROPERTY DAMAGE
fPar arrirtaiMl

%

s

B

X UMBRELLA UAB

EXCESS LIAB

OCCUR

CLAIMS4i(ADE

USO(24)594e2402 2/5/2023 2/5/2024

EACH OCCURRENCE S  1.000.000

X AGGREGATE S  1.000.000

DEO * RETENTION S 10,000

C

WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS' UABILITY y / N
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE j 1
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? Y
(MinditofylnNH) ' '
If yat, daa^ba und«r
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS Mow

NJA

3A StaC*: NH

01-0000124869-0$

Cxcl: Michael Fuarat;

Raynond Bower ( Roger Jobin

8/30/2023 8/30/2024

V PER OTH-
* STATIITF PR

E,L EACH ACCIDENT S  500.000

E.L DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE 5  500.000

E.L DISEASE • POUCY UMIT t  500.000

D

D

Crime

Piduciery Liability

MPL699579e-03

MPL699S798-03

2/19/2023

2/19/2023

2/19/2024

2/19/2024

Emptoyaa Olahenaaty $2,500,000

Par OccurraflM/Aggraeata $2M/$2M

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATTONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACOR0101. Addmenil Ramartc* SclMduto. m«y b* •tU«>Md if mor* tpac* U r*qulc*d)

Covering operations usual to insured through out the policy term.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

state of HH Dept. of Health 6 Human Servi

129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301-3857

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DEUVERED IN

ACCORDANCE WITH THE POUCY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

Rachel Giunta/RG

ACORO 25(2014/01)

INS025 (201401)

® 1988*2014 ACORO CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORO name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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OPG Mission Statement

The OPG Articles of Agreement and By-Laws articulate the following objectives and mission:

This corporation is created for the following reasons:

A. The provision of guardianship, co-guardianship and conservatorship services for individuals

found to be legally incapacitated pursuant to N.H. RSA 464-A and other applicable statutes.

B. To be designated as the Public Guardianship and Protection Program pursuant to N.H. RSA

547-B.

C. The provision of protective services, other than guardianship services that are consistent

with the intent of N.H. RSA 464-A. Such protective services may include, but not be limited

to, power of attorney, client representative, or services as a representative or protective

payee.

D. The provision of guardianship and other fiduciary services to minors.

E. The provision of private fiduciary services.

The mission statement expresses OPG's already well established philosophy as follows:

"It Is the goal of this corporation to protect the legal and human rights and civil liberties of all individuals

it serves by exercising the highest ethical standards in decision making on behalf of others and by

ensuring that the individual dignity of its clients is respected."
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OFFICE OF PUBLIC GUARDIAN, INC.

Financial Statements

June 30, 2022 and 2021

and

Independent Auditor's Report
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OFFICE OF PUBLIC GUARDIAN, INC.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2022 and 2021
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^VACHON Clukay Ci-RTiFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
/^/^XifDA TvTV "D^ Chesinui Sirect • Manchester, New Hampshire 03104^OMjrAN Y r v_> (603) 622-7070 • Fax: (603) 622-1452 • www.\-achonclukay.corn

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Board of Directors

Office of Public Guardian, Inc.

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Office of Public Guardian, Inc. (a nonprofit
organization), which comprise the statements of financial position as of June 30, 2022 and 2021, and the
related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related
notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Office of Public Guardian, Inc; as of June 30, 2022 and 2021, and the changes in its net
assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the
Office of Public Guardian, Inc. and to meet our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the relevant
ethical requirements relating to our audits. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Office of Public Guardian, Inc.'s
ability to continue as a going concern within one year affer the date that the financial statements are
available to be issued.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards will always
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detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if
there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment
made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, we:

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

•  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures
include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements.

•  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Office of Public Guardian Inc.'s intiemal control. Accordingly, no such opinion
is expressed.

•  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

•  Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about the Office of Public Guardian, Inc.'s ability to continue as a going
concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control related matters
that we identified during the audit.

Manchester, New Hampshire
October 12, 2023
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OFFICE OF PUBLIC GUARDIAN, INC.

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

June 30, 2022 and 2021

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS:

Cash

Accounts receivable, net of allowance for uncollectible

receivables of $30,000 in 2022 and 2021

Contracts receivable

Prepaid expenses
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

2022

113,055

216.346

32,489

1.357.882

2m

$  995,992 S 1,039,763

95,734

226.683

35,151

1.397,331

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT:

Condominium unit

OfTice furniture and equipment
Computer equipment

Less accumulated depreciation
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT. NET

1.181.782

142,105

185,508

1.509,395

739.186

770,209

1.181.782

142,105

185.508

1.509.395

684.047

825,348

OTHER NONCURRENT ASSETS:

Restricted cash

Investments-restricted

Software, net of accumulated amortization of $ 143,527 in 2021 and 2020
TOTAL OTHER NONCURRENT ASSETS

4,068

168,078

172,146

3,963

191,965

195,928

TOTAL ASSETS $ 2,300,237 $ 2,418,607

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES:

Accounts payable $  31.636 $  55.966

Accrued liabilities:

Accrued payroll 49,850 64,373

Accrued vacation .248,249 250,692

Other 50,397 67,567

Current portion of long-term liabilities 26,329 25,109

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 406,461 463,707

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES:

Mortgage notes payable, less current portion of $24,602 in 2022 and $23,462 In 2021 422,039 446,648

Notes payable, less current portion of $1,727 in 2022 and $1,647 in 2021 29.633 31,361

TOTAL NONCURRENT LIABILITIES 451,672 478.009

TOTAL LIABILITIES 858,133 941,716

NETASSETS:

Without donor restrictions: •

Undcsignatcd 1,269,958 1,280,963
With donor restrictions:

Purpose restrictions 72,146 95,928

Endowment funds 100,000 100,000

TOTAL NET ASSETS 1.442,104 1.476,891

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS $ 2,300,237. $ 2,418,607

See notes tofinancial staleinenis

3



DocuSign Envelope ID; 2495F63A-F4FF-42AA-B880-E3DAEA985CA2

OFFICE OF PUBLIC GUARDIAN, INC.

STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES

For the Years Ended June 30, 2022 and 2021

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS:

2022 2021

SUPPORT AND REVENUE:

Fees and grants from governmental agencies 3
Other fees '

Investment return, net.

Other income

TOTAL SUPPORT AND REVENUE WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS

;  2,511,367

2,310,973

1,655
1.578

4,825,573

$ 2,443,271

2,358,272

1,792

683

4,804,018

EXPENSES:

Program expense

Management and General Expenses

TOTAL EXPENSES

3,483,670
1,352,908

4,836,578

3,312,762

1,427,729

4,740.491

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS (ir,005) 63,527

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS:

Investment return, net (23,782) 36,789

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS (23,782) 36,789

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS (34,787) 100,316

NET ASSETS-July 1

NET ASSETS-June 30 3

1,476,891

:  1,442,104

1,376,575

$  1,476,891

See notes tofinancial statements
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OFFICE OF PUBLIC GUARDIAN, INC.
STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Supporting Services

SALARIES AND RELATED EXPENSES:

Salaries

Employee benefits
Payroll taxes

OTHER EXPENSES:

Occupancy

Professional services

Computer and sofhvare expenses

Staff development

Office expenses

Travel

Insurance .

Depreciation and amortization

Bad debts

Mortgage interest
Other

Total

Management Total

Program and Supporting Total

Services General Services Expenses

$ 2,544,185 $  918,704 $  918,704 $ 3,462,889

373,700 134,943 134,943 508,643
202,188 73,01 1 73,011 275,199

3,120,073 . 1,126,658 1,126,658 4,246,731

64,169 23,171 23,171 87,340

19,337 6,982 6,982 26,319

61,458 22,192 22,192 83,650

11,735 4,238 4,238 15,973

118,440 42,769 42,769 161,209

58,691 - 58,691

50,772 50,772 50,772

55,139 55,139 55,139

10,238 10,238 10,238

17,155 6,195 6,195 23,350
12,612 4,554 4,554 17,166

$ 3,483,670 $  1,352,908 $  1,352,908 $ 4,836,578

See notes tofinancial statements
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OFFICE OF PUBLIC GUARDIAN, INC.
STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

For the Year Ended June 30, 2021

SuDPortin2 Services

Management Total

Program and Supporting Total
Services General Services Expenses

SALARIES AND RELATED EXPENSES:

Salaries

Employee benefits

Payroll taxes

2,359,210

392,643
187,878

2,939.731

948,712

157,894
75,551

,182.157

948,712

157,894
75,551

182,157

3,307,922

550,537
263,429

4,121,888

OTHER EXPENSES:

Occupancy 32,453 13,050 13,050 45,503
Professional services 20,985 8,439 8,439 29,424
Computer and software expenses 64,249 25,837 25,837 90,086
Staff development 8,290 3,334 3,334 11,624
Office expenses 190,850 76,747 76,747 267,597
Travel 22,870 . 22,870
Insurance ' 39,731 39,731 39,731
Depreciation and amortization 56,037 56,037 56,037
Bad debts 8,993 8,993 8,993
Mortgage interest 17,480 7,029 7,029 24,509
Other 15,854 6,375 6,375 22,229

Total $ 3,312,762 ■ $  1,427,729 $  1,427,729 $ 4,740,491

See notes tofinancial statements
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OFFICE OF PUBLIC GUARDIAN, INC.

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the Years Ended June 30,2022 and 2021

2022 2021

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:

Cash received from clients and third-party payers $ 2,284,992 $ 2,388,443

Cash received from governmental agencies 2,521,704 2,388,109
Interest and dividends 1,655 1,792

Gash paid to employees (3,479,855) (3,354,742)

Cash paid to suppliers .(1,347,150) (1,319,599)
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities (18,654) 104,003

Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
Purchase of investments (13,084) (26,318)

Realized gains on investments 10,966 6,779
Cash received from interest and dividends 2,223 3,950
Net Cash Provided (Used) for Investing Activities 105 (15,589)

I

Cash Flows From Financing Activities:

Payments on mortgages and notes (25,117) (23,957)
Net Cash Used for Financing Activities (25,117) (23,957)

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash (43,666) 64,457

Cash, Beginning of Year 1,043,726 979,269

Cash, End of Year $ 1,000,060 $ 1,043,726

Supplemental Data:

Interest paid $ 23,350 $ 24,509

Unrealized gain (loss) on investments (36,971) 26,060
$  (13,621) $ 50,569

See notes tofinancial statements
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OFFICE OF PUBLIC GUARDIAN, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Years Ended June 30, 2022 and 2021

NOTE 1--SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Organization and Purpose

The Office of Public Guardian, Inc. (the "Entity") was incorporated as a non-profit organization on
July 14, 1983. The Entity was established to provide guardianship, co-guardiahship and conservatorship
services for individuals found to be legally incapacitated pursuant to New Hampshire State law
(RSA 464-A) and other applicable statutes. Protective services other than guardianship may include, but
are not limited to, power of attorney, client representative, or services as a representative or protective
payee.

Accounting Policies

The accounting policies of the Office of Public Guardian, Inc. conform to accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America as applicable to non-profit organizations, except as indicated
hereafter. The following is a summary of significant accounting policies.

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements have been prepared using the accrual basis of accounting.

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying financial statements are presented on the accrual basis of accounting and have been
prepared to focus on the Organization as a whole and to present balances and transactions according to
the existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions.

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions - Net assets available for use in general operations and not subject
to donor or certain grantor restrictions. These net assets may be used at the discretion of management and
the Entity's Board of Directors.

Net Assets with Donor Restrictions - Net assets subject to donor or certain grantor-imposed restrictions.
Some donor-imposed restrictions are temporary in nature, such as those that will be met by the passage of
time or other events specified by the donor. Other donor-Imposed restrictions are perpetual in nature,
where the donor stipulates that resources be maintained in perpetuity. Donor-imposed restrictions are
released when a restriction expires, that is, when the stipulated time has elapsed, when the stipulated
purpose for which the resource was restricted has been fulfilled, or both.

Recognition of Contributions and Donor Restrictions

Contributions are recognized when the donor makes a promise to give to the Entity that is, in substance,
unconditional. The Entity reports contributions restricted by donors as increases In net assets without
donor restrictions if. the restrictions expire (that is, when a stipulated time restriction end or purpose
restriction is accomplished) in the reporting period in which the revenue is recognized. All other donor
restricted contributions are reported as increases in net assets with donor restrictions, depending on the
nature of the restrictions. When a restriction expires, net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified to
net assets without donor restrictions and reported in the statements of activities as net assets released from
restrictions.
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OFFICE OF PUBLIC GUARDIAN, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2022 and 2021

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and other cash accounts with a maturity of 90 days or
less. For purposes of the Statements of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of the following:

2022 2021

As presented on the Statements of Financial Position:

Cash $ 995,992 $ 1,039,763"

Cash, restricted 4,068 3,963
$  1,000,060 S 1,043,726

Significant Concentrations of Credit Risk

The Entity's cash balances exceed amounts insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC).
Deposits held by the bank at June 30, 2022 include cash of $308,431 which is not covered by depository
insurance. As of June 30, 2021, the uninsured cash balance was $566,214.

Restricted Cash and Investments

Restricted cash and investments consist of cash and investments for the Graupner Endowment Fund, a
donor restricted contribution.

Investments

Investments, consisting of equity and fixed income mutual funds, are reported at their fair values in the
statements of financial position. Net investment retum/(loss) is reported in the statements of activities and
consists of interest income, realized and unrealized gains and losses, and less external investment
expenses.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are staled at cost. The Entity's policy is to capitalize expenditures for major
improvements and to charge operations currently for expenditures which do not extend the lives of related
assets. The provision for depreciation is determined by the straight-line method at rates intended to
depreciate or amortize the cost of related assets over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Years

Fumiture and Equipment 3- 10

Buildings and Improvements 10 - 40

Depreciation expense was $55,139 and $56,037 for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021,"respectively.

Bad Debts

The Entity uses the reserve method for accounting for bad debts. For the years ended June 30, 2022 and
2021, the Entit)' reserved $30,000 as an allowance for uncollectible receivables. Management estimated
these allowances by evaluating the probability of collection on a per account basis. -



DocuSign Envelope ID: 2495F63A-F4FF-42AA-B880-E3DAEA985CA2

OFFICE OF PUBLIC GUARDIAN, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2022 and 2021

Accrued Vacation

Full time employees accrue Paid Time Off (PTO) during their first year of employment at a rate of 9.38
hours per completed month of service. After the first year of service employees are credited with 150 to
262.5 hours of PTO for that year on January 1st, based on each employee's years of service. Employees
may carry over 37.5 to 150 hours of unused PTO into each calendar year based on their years of service.
Any accrued, but unused PTO is payable to the employee upon separation from employment and has been
recorded as a liability at year end.

Income Taxes

The Entity is exempt from Federal income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code
and is also exempt from State of New Hampshire income taxes and, therefore, has made no provision for
Federal or State income taxes. In addition, the Entity has been determined by the Internal Revenue
Service not to be a "Private Foundation" within the meaning of Section 509(a) of the Code. The Entity is
annually required to file a Return of Organization Exempt from Income Tax (Form 990) with the IRS.
FASB Accounting Standards Codification Topic 740 entitled Accounting for Income Taxes requires the
Entity to report uncertain tax positions for financial reporting purposes. The Entity had no uncertain tax
positions as of June 30, 2022 and, accordingly does not have any unrecognized tax benefits that need to
be recognized or disclosed in the financial statements.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Cash and equivalents, accounts receivable, contracts receivable, accounts payable, and accrued expenses

are carried in the financial statements at amounts which approximate fair value due to the inherently
short-term nature of the transactions. The fair values determined for financial instruments are estimates,

which for certain accounts may differ significantly from the amounts that could be realized upon

immediate liquidation.

Revenue Recognition

The Entity recognizes contributions, donations, and other miscellaneous income whep cash is received.
Interest income is recognized monthly as accrued. The Entity recognizes revenue from contracts with
customers in the form of guardianship services provided to individuals. Services provided to individuals
are charged to governmental contracts when eligible, and for those not eligible, charged as "private pay."

The Entity has revenue derived from governmental contracts for guardianship services provided, which
are based upon certain performance requirements. Revenue from governmental contracts is recognized
when the Entity has met the performance requirements specified by contract provisions. For governmental
contracts, services are billed on a monthly basis in arrears.

Private pay guardianship services are billed in one of three methods: hourly for services related to
estate/financial matters and monthly flat rate for guardianship over person; per diem for court appointed
guardianship over person; and on a percentage basis for trusts and guardianship services of a minor. Per
diem services are billed in advance, while hourly, fiat rate and percentage-based services are billed after
services have been provided. The Entity recognizes revenue for private pay services at the point in time
when customers are billed. Receivables may be recorded in advance of services provided.

10
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OFFICE OF PUBLIC GUARDIAN, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2022 and 2021

Functional Allocation ofExpenses

The costs of program and supporting services activities have been summarized on a functional basis in the
statements of activities. The statements of functional expenses present the natural classification detail of
expenses by function.

The financial statements report certain categories of expenses that are attributed to more than one
program or supporting function. Accordingly, certain indirect costs have been allocated among the
programs and supporting services benefited, based primarily on percentage allocations calculated based
on hours worked (time and effort). The expenses that are allocated include employee benefits, payroll
taxes, occupancy, professional services, computer and software expense, office expense, mortgage
interest, and other miscellaneous expenses.

Advertising Expense

The Entity expenses advertising costs as incurred.

Pervasiveness ofEstimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain
reported amounts and disclosures during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.

NOTE 2 -ECONOMIC DEPENDENCE

The Entity's primary source of support are fees and grants received from the State of New Hampshire
totaling $2,511,367 (52% total revenue), and $2,443,271 (51 % total revenue) for the years ended June 30,
2022 and 2021, respectively. Revenue is recognized as earned under the terms of the contract based on
units and level of services provided. Other support originates as charges for private services, Interest, and
other income. The contract has been renewed through the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023.

NOTE 3--LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY

The Entity regularly monitors the availability of resources required to meet its operating needs and other
contractual commitments. Cash reserves in e-xcess of daily operational needs are invested in money
market and savings accounts to maximize investment return while maintaining safet)' and liquidity.

The following table reflects the Entity's financial assets as of June 30, 2022 and 2021, reduced by
amounts that are not available to meet general expenditures within one year of the statement of financial
position date because of donor restrictions.

Financial assets available for general expenditure, reduced by donor or other restrictions limiting their
use, within one year of the balance sheet date, comprise the following:



DocuSign Envelope ID; 2495F63A.F4FF^2AA-B880-E3DAEA985CA2

OFFICE OF PUBLIC GUARDIAN, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2022 and 2021

2022 2021

Cash $ 1,000,060 $ 1,043,726

Investments 168,078 191,965

Accounts receivable 113,055 95,734

Contracts receivable 216,346 226,683

Total Financial Assets 1,497,539 1,558,108

Less:

Net assets with donor restrictions (172,146) (195,928)

Financial Assets Available to Meet Cash Needs

for General Expenditures Within One Year $ 1,325.393 $ 1,362.180

NOTE 4~INVESTMENTS

Fair Value Measurements

The Entity reports under the Fair Value Measurements pronouncements, of the FASB Accounting
Standards Codification (FASB ASC 820-10), which establishes a framework for measuring fair value.
That framework provides a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs of valuation techniques used to
measure fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities (level 1 measurement) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs
(level 3 measurements). The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are described below.

Level 1 - inputs to the valuation methodology are unadjusted quoted prices for identical assets or
liabilities in active markets that the Entity has the ability to access at the measurement date.

Level 2 - Inputs to the valuation include:

•  Quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets;

•  Quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active;
•  inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability;
•  Inputs, that are derived principally from or corroborated by.observable market data by

correlation or other means.

If the asset or liability has a specified (contractual) term, the Level 2 input must be observable for
substantially the full term of the asset or liability.

Level 3 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to the fair value
measurement.'

in some cases, the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability might be categorized
within different levels of the fair value hierarchy. In those cases, the fair value measurement is

categorized in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is
significant to the entire measurement. Assessing the significance of a particular input to entire
measurement requires judgment, taking into account factors specific to the asset or liability. The
categorization of an asset within the hierarchy is based upon the pricing transparency of the asset and
does not necessarily correspond to our assessment of the quality, risk, or liquidity profile of the asset or

liability.

Following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for assets measured at fair value.
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OFFICE OF PUBLIC GUARDIAN, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2022 and 2021

Equity and fixed income mutual funds: Valued at the closing price reported on the active market.on which
the individual securities are traded.

The following tables set forth by level, within the fair value hierarchy, the Entity's assets measured at fair
value on a recurring basis, as of June 30, 2022 and 2021:

Assets at Fair Value as of June 30. 2022

Level I Level 2 Level 3 Total

Equity mututal funds $  1 12,765 $ 112,765

Fixed income mututal funds 55,313 55,313

Total Assets at Fair Value $  168,078 $ $  - $• 168,078

Assets at Fair Value as of June 30, 2021

l.evel 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Equity mututal funds $  141,438 $ 141,438

Fixed income mututal funds 50,527 50,527

Total Assets at Fair Value $  191,965 $ $  - $ 191,965

NOTE 5~END0WMENTS

The Board of Directors of the Entity has interpreted the State Prudent Management of Institutional Funds
Act (SPMIFA) as requiring the preservation of the fair value of the original gift as of the gift date of the
donor-restricted endowment funds absent explicit donor stipulations to the contrary. Because of this
interpretation, the Entity classifies the original value of the gift as donor restricted net assets which are
permanently restricted. The remaining portion of the donor-restricted endowment fund is classified as
donor restricted net assets until approved for expenditure when it is reclassified to unrestricted net assets.

The Entity appropriates amounts for expenditure in a manner consistent with the standard of prudence
prescribed by SPMIFA. in^ accordance with SPMIFA, the Entity considers the following factors in
making a determination to appropriate or accumulate donor-restricted endowment funds: (I) duration and
preservation of the endowment funds; (2) the purposes of the Entity and the endowment fund; (3) general
economic conditions; (4) effect of inflation and deflation; (5) the expected total return from income and
the appreciation of investments; (6) other resources of the Entit)'; and (7) the investment policy of the
Entity.

The Entity has adopted investment and spending policies for endowment assets that attempt to provide a
predictable stream of income of funding to programs supported by its endowment while seeking to
maintain the purchasing power of those endowment assets over the long-term. Endowment assets include
those assets of donor-restricted funds that the Entity must hold in perpetuity or for donor-specified
periods. .Under this policy, as approved by the Board of Directors, the endowment assets are invested in a
manner that is intended to achieve an after-cost total real rale of return, including investment income as
well as capital appreciation, which exceeds the annual distribution with acceptable levels of risk. The
Entity expects its endowment assets, over time, to produce an average return of approximately 10%
annually. Actual returns in any given year may vary from this amount.

To satisfy its long-term rate of return objectives, the Entity relies on a total return strategy in which
investment returns are achieved through both capital appreciation and current yield. The Entity targets a
diversified asset allocation which includes equity and debt securities. This is intended to result in a

13
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OFFICE OF PUBLIC GUARDIAN, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2022 and 2021

consistent Inflationrprotection rate of return that has enough liquidity to make an annual distribution of
approximately $5,000 on average while growing the fund, if possible.

From time to time, the fair value of assets associated with individual donor-restricted endowment funds
may fall below the level that the donor or SPMIFA requires the Entity to retain as a fund of perpetual
duration.

The following tabulation summarizes the relationship between carrying values and market values of
investment assets for the years ending June 30, 2022 and 2021:

For the year ended June 30, 2022:
Purpose
Restricted

Endowment

Funds Total

Donor restricted net assets as of

July I, 2021

Investment return:

Investment income, net of fees

Net appreciation

Donor restricted net assets as of June 30, 2022

95,928

13,189

(36,971)

72,146

$  100,000 $ 195,928

13,189

(36.971)

$  100,000 S 172,146

For the year ended June 30, 2021:

Purpose

Restricted

Endowment

Funds Total

Donor restricted net assets as of

July 1. 2020

Investment return;

Investment income, net of fees

Net appreciation

Donor restricted net assets as of June 30, 2021

59,139

10,729

26.060

95,928

$  100,000 $ 159,139

10,729

26,060

$  100,000 $ 195,928

NOTE 6-LONG-TERM DEBT

At June 30, 2022 and 2021, mortgage and notes payable consists of the following:

$584,000 mortgage note payable with bank, secured by properly,

payable in monthly installments of $3,774, through October 2035.

Note includes variable interest at a rate of 4.75% per annum through
November 2025, subsequent interest will be 2.25% plus the Ten

Year Federal Home Loan Bank Index Rate.

2022 2021

$  446,641 $ 470,110

14
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OFFICE OF PUBLIC GUARDIAN, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCUL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2022 and 2021

$41,000 unsecured note payable with bank, payable in monthly

installments of $265 through October 2035. Note includes variable

interest at a rate of 4.75% per annum through November 2025,
subsequent Interest will be 2.25% plus the Ten Year Federal Home

Loan Bank Index Rate. 31,360 33,008

478,001 503,118
Less current portion 26,329 25,109

$  451,672 $  478,009

Debt service requirements are as follows:

Year

2023

2024

2025

2026

2027

Thereafter

Amount

$  26,329

27,607

28,947.

30,590

32.156

332,372

$  478,001

NOTE 7~REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS

The following table provides information about significant balances on contracts with customers for the
prior three years:

June 30, 2022

June 30, 2021

June 30, 2020

Contract

Receivables Assets

$  350,142 $

$  349,763 $

$  330,081 . $

Contract

Liabilities

NOTE 8--RETIREMENT PLAN

The Entity has a lax deferred annuity plan under Section 403(b) of the Internal Revenue Code for all full-
time employees. An employee becomes eligible to participate at the commencement of employment and
is vested when an initial contribution is made. Employer contributions are made on each participant's
behalf; contribution rates were 5% and 6% of gross wages for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021,
respectively. The Entity contributed $105,454 and $141,742 for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021,
respectively, to the plan.

NOTE 9~AGENGY FUNDS

The Entity maintains guardian accounts on behalf of the wards of the State of New Hampshire in a
custodial capacity. These funds amounted to approximately $32,737,761 and $35,069,668 as of
June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively. The assets and related obligations have not been reflected on the
Statements of Financial Position at June 30, 2022 or 2021.
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OFFICE OF PUBLIC GUARDIAN, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2022 and 2021

NOTE 10-SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent events have been evaluated through October 12, 2023, which is the date the financial
statements were available to be issued.
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Michael Palmieri

Nina Gardner

Judith Jones, Esq

Robert Magan, CFA

Robert A. Wells, Esq.

OFFICE OF PUBLIC GUARDIAN

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Revised Sep-23
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LINDA MALLON, ESQUIRE
Office of Public Guardian

2 Pillsbury St., Suite 400
Concord NH 03301

(603) 224-8041
lmallon@opgnh.org

EDUCATION: Franklin Pierce Law Center. Concord, New Hampshire
Juris Doctor, 1982
Admission to New Hampshire Bar, 1982

Trinity College. Hartford, Connecticut
B.A., American Studies, 1977

PROFESSIONAL

EXPERIENCE: OFFICE OF PUBLIC GUARDIAN

Concord, New Hampshire

Executive Director, 1998-Present
Deputy Director, 1985-1998
Public Guardian, 1984-1985

• Responsible for directing a non-profit organization certified by
the NH Supreme Court to provide public guardianship
throughout the State of NH to qualified indigent citizens
receiving services through the Department of Health and
Human Services and Department of Corrections

• Responsible for overseeing the provision of private
guardlariship and other fiduciary services to Individuals
statewide

• Provide supervision, consultation and training to twenty-six
staff members Including attorneys, medical professionals and
social workers

• Develop organizational policies and procedures
• Provide education, training and other consultative services on

a state, regional and national basis
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NEW ENGLAND NON-PROFIT

HOUSING CORPORATION

Concord, New Hampshire
Staff Attorney, 1982-1984

NEW HAMPSHIRE LEGAL ASSISTANCE

INSTITUTIONAL LAW PROJECT

Concord, New Hampshire
Law Clerk, 1981-1982

Statewide program concerned with matters affecting the
rights of Institutionalized and disabled persons In the areas
of mental health, developmental disabilities, juvenile and
prison law.

Focus on pursuing remedies which enabled these individuals
to live In the least restrictive, most integrated community
setting possible.

CERTIRCATIONS: Center for Guardianship Certification
• Certified Master Guardian

• Certified Proctor for CGC exams

MEMBERSHIPS: National Guardianship Association
• Ethics Committee; Rrst Responder
• Nominating Committee

New Hampshire Bar Association
• Elder Law, Estate Planning and Probate Section

Probate Court Task Force on Professional Guardians

Long Term Care Ombudsman Advisory Committee

Incapacitated Adult Fatality Review Committee

Foundation for Healthy Communities
• Healthcare Decisions Coalition
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Tracy M. Culberson. Esq.

Experience 20f5-Ci/nisnf Office of Public Guardian
General Counsel / National Certified Guardian

• Provide legal counsel as necessary to assist In the provision of guardianship
services to incapacitated clients throughout New Hampshire.

• Provide guardianship services to incapacitated adults

2011 - Current Culberson Legal Services of New Hampshire. PLLC

Owner / Solo Practitioner

•  Legal services to include probate litigation, elder law and estate planning, and
Nursing Home Abuse Litigation

2006-2011 Office of the New Hampshire Attorney General. Concord NH

Assistant Attorney General

• Head of the Bder Abuse and Flnandal Exploitation Unit

• Prosecuted cases of homicide, abuse, neglect, and financial expbitation of
elderly and incapacitated adults in Siipenor, District, and Protote Courts
throughout the State of New Hampshire. Notable prosecutions include:

• Train^ medical professionals, first responders, judges, court personnel,
emergency service providers, and adult protection workers In identl^ng signs
and symptoms of elder abuse, neglect, self-neglect and exploitation, mandatory
reporting, investigation techniques and evidence preservation.

• Drafted and filed State's response to defendant's appeal to Supreme Court

■ Chairman of the Incapacitated. Adult Fatality Review Committee.

2005-2006 Office of the Hillsborough County Attorney, Manchester NH

Assistant County Attorney

• Represented the State and Hillsborough County in Juvenile, District and
Superior Courts.

• Prosecution of misdemeanor and felony-level crimes.

" Presentation of felony cases to the grand jury for indictment

Co-Director of Communities Against Senior Exploitation (CASE) Partnership.

1992-2005 Goffstown Police Department, Goffstown NH

Police Officer/Prosecutor

• Certified New Hampshire Police Officer

•  Instructed and trained police officers in the areas of juvenile law, criminal and
motor vehicle law enforcement and adjudication, search and seizure, use of
force, constitutional law, and the laws of arrest

• Drafted, reviewed, and executed search and arrest wanants.

• Training and experience in the investigation of felonies and serious
misdemeanors to Include homicide, sexual assault, child neglect and abuse,
robbery, burglary, arson, fraud, Internet crimes and financial exploitation.
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2005-2007 Plymouth State University, Plymouth. NH

AcQimct Faculty

•  Instructor within the Department of Criminal Justice.

Specific instruction in courses to include ■Criminal Adjudication", The
Constitution and the Criminal Justice Protocor and "Domestic Violence and
Juvenile Justice".

2005-Current New Hampshire Police Standards and Training Council, Concord NH
Guest Lecturer

•  Instructor for in-service training of police officers attending "Basic Police
Prosecutor" Course.

• Lectu^ on topics to Include The Rules of Evidence", "Case Preparation and
Analysis" and "Elder Abuse and Financial Exploitatton Investigation".

• Fadiitator of mock DWI trials.

Education
2004 Massachusetts School of Law

• Juris Doctor Degree
North Andover, MA

Certifications and

Professional

Organization
Memberships

1992 Saint Anselm College Goffstown, NH
•  Bachelor of Arts Degree
• Completion of requirements for Criminal Justice in 1992

Completion of requirements for English in 1998

2008-Current - Chair of Incapacitated Adult Fatality Review Committee

2006-Current - Co-Chairperson of Law Enforcement Sub-Committee of the Elder.
Abuse Advisory Council

2006-Current - Panel Member of Long-Term Care Safety Net Committee

2004 - Member of the Massachusetts Bar Association BA-159542
2004 - Member of the New Hampshire Bar Association BA-16430
2005 - Justice of the Peace - New Hampshire
■  1992 - Certified New Hampshire Police Officer

Continuing Legal
Education Trial Advocacy I - National District Attorney's Association: Trial Advocacy II -

National District Attorney's Assodatbn: Prosecuting Cases of Bder Abuse -
National District Attome/s Association: Advanced Cross Examination; Nuts and
Bolts of Criminal Law: Access to Public Records: New Hampshire Bar
Association Practical Skills Course: Communities Against Senior Exploitetion,
(CASE) Partnership: NH Attomey GeneraFs Child Abuse and Domestic Violence
Conference.
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Other

■  Board of Directors: Honor Flight New England

■  Board of Directors for Suncook Youth Soccer

■  Conversational French; Percussionist
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Mary K. MIchaud

EDUCATION Master of Social Work. 1990

State University of New York at Albany, Albany, NY

NH LICSW, 1996 (currently on Inactive status)

B JV. Psvchologv. 1986

St. Ansetm College, Manchester, NH

PROFESSIONAL Office of Public Guardian. 1998-present

EXPERIENCE Concord, NH

Director of Guardianship Services. Julv 2017-present

•  Provide oversight and management of guardian department, directly
supervising 18 professional guardians, including 2 team leaders.

•  Serve as a member of the management team, participating In

organizational decisions.

•  Responsible for making caseload assignments to ensure manageable

caseload size and composition.

•  In conjunction with Executive Director and Associate Director, responsible

for hiring new guardians. Provide orientation and training for new

guardians and oversee ongoing training for all guardians.

•  Serve as primary guardian for several individuals.

Guardian Supervisor. 2014-2017

•  Provide direct supervision, consultation and perfoimance oversight for
professional guardian staff.

•  Provide orientation and training for new guardians.

•  Serve as primary guardian for several individuals.

Staff Guardian. 1998-oresent

•  Provide advocacy and Informed decision making for individuals

deemed Incapacitated by the NH Probate Court due to intellectual

disability, mental Illness, traumatic brain injury and/or dementia.

•  Collaborate with families, medical providers, nursing homes, area

agencies, community mental health centers, state psychiatric hospital,

and other inpatient, residential and outpatient providers to ensure
best possible outcomes for individuals in least restrictive settings.
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Genesis Behavioral Health ffka Genesls-The Counseling Group). 1996'1998

Laconia, NH

Case Management Coordinator. 1997-1998

•  Provided administrative and clinical oversight of Community

Support Program clinical case management and independent

living services for individuals with serious and persistent mental

illness.

Clinical Case Manager. 1996-1997

•  Provided primary therapy and case management services for

adults with serious and persisterit mental Illness.

•  Performed Emergency Services clinical evaluations

Gateway Center for Human Development. Brunswick. GA. 1995-1996

Interim Program Manager

•  Managed psychosocial day treatment program for adults with

mental illness during agency search for permanent manager.

Rensselaer County Department of Mental Health. 1990-1995

Troy, NY

Intensive Case Manager. 1991-1995

•  Provided outreach and support for adults with serious and

persistent mental illness at risk for homelessness,

incarceration or recurring psychiatric hospitalization.

Mental Health Social Worker. 1990-1991

•  Responsible for primary therapy and case management

services for adults with mental illness.
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ANDREA L. SISSON, CPA
Office of Public Guardian

2 Pillsbury St, Suite 400
Concord, NH 03301
(603) 224-8041

SUMMARY:

•  18 years of experience with local CPA firms working with a wide range of clients
including small service businesses, non-profit organizations and multi-million dollar
manufacturing companies.

• Co-founded and managed local payroll service bureau.
•  Proficient in v^ous types of tax return preparation, all areas of accounting, bookkeeping

and payroll.
• Designed and implemented customized bookkeeping systems for clients.
• Hired, trained and supervised staff at various levels.

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE:

Office of Public Guardian Concord, New Hampshire
Director of Finance 10/2007-Present

• Responsible for all fmancial aspects of the organization including daily
accounting work, preparation of financial statements, preparation of payroll for 27
person staff, creation of budgets

• Responsible for supervision of all administrative staff and oversight of all
administrative functions of the entity

• Assist in the development of organizational policies and procedures as a member
of the management team

Peter C. Brankman and Company, P.C. Concord, New Hampshire
Senior Staff Accountant/Manager 10/2004 - 10/2007
• Managed individual tax portion of practice (400-500 returns); controlled work

flow, supervised staff, prepared returns in a fast-paced deadline driven
environment.

• Designed and implemented paperless individual tax processing system.
•  Perform compilations, reviews and audits of various for profit and non-profit

client financial statements.

• Designed and implemented bookkeeping systems for clients.
• Trained and supervised staff on all types of engagements.
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D'Agnese, Robinson and Company/Stephen C. Robinson and Company, /McLaraey
and Company (Same firm various owners) Concord, New Hampshire
StafT Accountant/Senior Staff Accountant/Manager 9/1989 - 6/2004
• Assisted and advised clients with various accounting and management functions.
•  Installed and set up accounting software packages; train client personnel.'
• Managed all bookkeeping clients.
• Designed and implemented accounting and internal control procedures.
• Managed work flow through busy tax seasons
• Hired, trained and supervised staff.

EDUCATION:

•  BS in Accounting, Bentley College May 1989
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Office of Public Guardian

Key Personnel 7/1/2023 -6/30/2024 Contract Amendment

Name Job Title Salary Amount Paid
from this Contract

Linda Mallon Executive Director $66,373

Tracy Culberson Director of Legal Services $65,175

Mary Michaud Director of Guardianship
Services

$49,546

Andrea Slsson Director of finance. $48,458
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LoH A.

ComminlMcr

Kn'tja S. Fot
Director .

JUN08'22am 8j56RCVD

STATE OP NEW HAMPSHORC

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION FOR BEHA VIORAL HEALTH

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD. NH 03301
603-27It9544 1 •800-851-3345 Eit 9544

Fai:603-2?l-4333 TDD Access: 1-800-735.2964 www.<lb}is.Bh.gov

May 31. 2022

Hts Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Health,
to amend existing contracts. with the Contractors listed below for the provision of public
guardianship services, by exercising contract renewal options by increasing the total price
limitation by $6,866,540 from $6,299,383 to $13,167,923 and extending the completion dates
from June 30,2022 to June 30, 2024, effective upon Governor and Council approval. 4%. Federal
Funds. 96% General Funds.

#18.

The original contracts were approved by Goverrrar and Council on June 24, 2020, item

Contractor

Name.
Vendor

Code

Area Served Current

Amount
Increase.

(Decrease)
Revised

Amount

Office of Public

Guardian

166528-

B001
Concord, NH $4,900,419 $5,469,576 $10,369,995

TivCounty
Community

Action

Program

177195-

.B009
Benin, NH $1,398,964 $1,398,964 $2,797,928

Total: $6,299,363 $6,868,540 $13.167;923

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Years 2022 and 2023, arKi
are anticipated to be available In State Fiscal Year 2024, upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds In the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget line items
' within the price limitation and encumbrances between statefiscal years through the Budget Office,
(f'h^ed and justift^.

See attached fiscal details.

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is to continue providing and to expand guardianship services,
statewide, for Individuals with mental Illness or developmental disabilities, as well as Incapacitated
adults who are abused, neglected or exploited thereby leaving them at risk of substantial harm
because of their inability to provide for their own food, shelter, health care, safety, or to manage
their pei^onal affairs. This action also raises the per diem rate for guardianship services to $8.94,

Tht Deportment of HtoUh and Human Servieet'Mituon is to Join communities end/amilies
in prouiding opportunities for citizens toachieoe health and independence
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His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Counc9

Page 2 of 2

representing an increase of almost 10% from the current rate of $8.25. for one (1) of the
Contractors In order to more closely align with the Contractor's demonstrated current market rate
for these services.

Approximately 1,117 individuals will be served during State Fiscal Years 2023 and 2024.

Guardianship senrices are necessary to meet the State's statutory obligations to
safeguard incapacitated individuals who are in state InstHutlons as well as in coriimunity mental
health and developmental service programs, statewide. Services provided ensure that the
guardianships are maintained and limited in accordance with the standards embodied In NH RSA
464-A from July 1. 2020 to June 30. 2024.

Contracted services Include frientoring and training services for family members who are
willing to serve as guardian but who require a period of support. Providing this support will obviate
the need for a public guardian in these cases, which results iri a fiscal savings due to not needing
to engage permanent public guardianship services.

The Department will continue monitoring contracted services by reviewing quarterly and
annual reports provided by the Contractors.

As referenced in Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 17, and Exhibit A. Revisions
to Standard Contract Provisions. Paragraph 1.2.. of the original agreements, the parties have the
option to extend the agreements for up to two (2) additional years.' contingent upon satisfactory
delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the parties and Governor and Counpll
approval.. The Department is exercising its option to renew services for two (2) of the two (2) years
available.

Should the Governor and Executive Courict) not authorize this request, the Department
would be out of compliance vflth the requirements of NH RSA 135-C: 60; NH RSA 171-A: 10. II;
and NH RSA 161-F: 52. Additionally, individuals with mental illness, developmental disabilities
and incapacitated adults who are abused, neglected or exploited, would be left at risk of
substaritia! harm because of their Inability to provide their own food, shelter, health care, safety^
or to manage their personal affairs.

Source of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Number #93.667. FAIN #TBD.

The Department will r^uest General Funds In the event that Federal Funds are no longer
available and services are still needed.

Respectfully submitted,

Lori A. Shibmette

Commissioner



DocuSign Envelope ID: 2495F63A-F4FF-42AA-B880-E3DAEA985CA2

05-95-92-922010-4114 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT. HHS; BEHAVIORAL HEALTH D(V,
BUREAU OF MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES. GUARDIANSHIP SVCS

Statt

Fiscal

Year

Class/Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget

Increased

(Decreased)

Amount

Revised Budget

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92204114 S3.019.644.50 . $0 S3.019.644.50

2022 102-500731 ' Contracts for Rrog Svc 92204114 S3.019.644.50 SO S3.019.644.50

2023 102-500731 Contracts (or Prog Svc 92204114 SO $3.048.257;00 S3.048.257:00

2024 102-500731 . Contracts for Proo Svc 92204114 SO S3.048.257.00 S3.048.257.00

Subtotal 96,039.289.00 $6,098,514.00 $12,135,603.00

05-9S-4S^1010-9255-HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT. HHS: ELDERLY 6. ADULT SVCS

OIV; GRANTS FOR SOCIAL SVC PROG. SOCIAL SERVICES BLOCK GRANT

State

Fiscal

Year

Class/Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget

Increased

(Decreased)

Amount ■

Revised Budget

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 48130201 S130.047 SO SI 30.047

2022 102-500731 - Contracts for Prog Svc 48130201 S130.047 SO SI 30,047

2023 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 48130201 SO S156.939 $156,939

2024 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 48130201 SO S156,939 $156,939

- Subfora/ $260,094 $313,678 1573,972

05-9S-93-923010-5947 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT. MS: DLTSS-OEVELOPMENTAL

SVCS. DfV OF DEVELOPMENTAL SVCS, PROGRAM SUPPORT

State

Fiscal

Year.

Class/Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget

Increased

(Decreased) ■

Amount

Revised Budget

2023 102-500731 • Contracts for Proq Svc 48130201 SO $229,074 $229,074

• 2024' 102-500731 Contracts (or Proq.Svc 48130201 SO $229,074 $229,074

Subtotal so $458,148 $458,148

|. Grand rofa/| S6.299,3S3| S6,86S,S40| $13.167,9231
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #1

This Amendment to the Guardianship Services contract is'by and between the State of New Hampshire.
Department of Health and Human Services ("State" or "Department") and Office of Public Guardian ("the
Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 24. 2020, (Item #18), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and
conditions specified in the Contract and in consideration of certain sums specified: and

WHEREAS, pursuant'to Form P-37, General Provisions. Paragraph 17. and Exhibit A, Revisions to
Standard Contract Provisions, Paragraph 1.2.. the Contract may be amended upon written agreement of
the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these senrices; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

■ 1. Form P-37 General Provision's, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

June 30. 2024

2. Form P-37 General Provisions. Block 1.9, Contracting Officer for State Agency, to read:

Robert W. Moore. Director

3. Form P-37. General Provisions. Block 1.6, Price Limitation, to read:

$10,369,995

4. Modify Exhibit B. Scope of Services. Subsection 1.3. Guardianship and Protection Services.
Paragraph 1.3.4. to read:

1.3.4. For persons referred to Contractor by the Department's Office of Client and Legal Services
pursuant to NH RSA 136-C:60 and NH RSA 171-A:10 II. the Contractor shall serve the
current total of 755 wards receiving guardianship services as well as any new persons
referred for services, in accordance with Paragraph 1.1.7 above, for a total of up to 790
cases during the contract period.

5. Modify Exhibit B. Scope of Services. iSubsection 1.3. Guardianship and Protection Services,
Paragraph'1.3.6. to read:

1.3.6. The Contractor shall provide guardianship services for no-more .than 47 persons, as referred
by the Bureau of Elderly and Adult Services pursuant to NH RSA^161-F:52. at any point In
time durlng the contract period.

6. Modify Exhibit C, Payment'Terms, Section 1. to read:

1. This Agreement is funded by:

1.1. 94% General funds.

1.2. 6% Federal funds, Social Services Block Grant, as awarded oh August 4, 2021. by the
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Administration for Children and
Families CFDA #93.667. FAIN TBD.

7. Modify Exhibit C. Payment Terms. Section 3, to read:

3. '.The State shall pay the Contractor a per diem, per case.rate for services provided in
fulfillment of this Agreement in accordance with the per diem rates as follows: .—os

3.1. The per diem reimbursement rate for the provision of guardianship over tne(^rson
Office of Public Guardian A-S-1.2 Conlractor Initials ^ —

W777U72^
SS-2021-DBH-01-GUARD-01-A01 Page 1 of 4 Dale
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services or guardianship over the estate services, as approved by the Office of Client
and Legal Services for all Bureau of Mental Health Services or Bureau of
Developmental Services wards, shall be $8.94 per ward, per day, for up to 790 wards,

■'as follows:

3.1.1. The per diem rate shall be $8.94 per ward per day for guardianship over the
person services.

3.1.2. The per diem rate shall be $8.94 per ward per day for guardianship over the
estate services.

3.1.3. In the instance when the Contractor is the guardian over the person.and
.  guardian over the estate of a ward, the Department shall reimburse the-

Contractor for each service In accordance with 3.1.1 and 3.1.2 above.

3.2. The hourly reimbursement rate for the provision of training in Exhibit B Section 1,
Subsection 1.4, Paragraph 1.4.1 shall be $60.00, not to exceed 25 hours for a total
arnouhfof $1,500.00.

3.3. The per diem reimbursement rate for the provision of guardianship over the person
.  services or guardianship over the estate services as requested by the Bureau of Elderly

and Adult Services shall be $8.94, per ward, per day, for up to 47 wards, as follows:

3.3.1. The per diem rate shall be $8.94 per ward per day for guardianship over the
person services.

3.3.2. The per diem rate shall be $8.94 per ward per day for guardianship over the
estate sen/ices.

3.3.3. In the instance when the Contractor is the guardian over the person and
guardian over the estate of a ward, the Department shall reimburse the
Contractor for each service in accordance with 3.3.1 and 3.3.2 above.

3.4. The per diem rates will be extended to the last day of the month following the month in
which the ward dies or for whom guardianship service are terminated.

3.5. For wards referred for guardianship services by the Bureau of Elderly and Adult
Services, the actual cost paid by Contractor for expenses incurred in the performance
of Contractors duties for guardianship over the estate under this Agreement, including,
but hot limited to, filing fees, bond costs and appraisal fees v^ere no other source of
reimbursement exists, shall not exceed $3,574.50.

Office of Public Guardian A-S-l .2 Conlraclor Inillals
WT/ZUTT

SS-2021-08H-01-GUARO-01-A01 Pa9e2of4 Dale
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All terms and conditions of the Contract not modified by this Amendment remain in full force and effect.
This Amendment shall be effective July 1, 2022, or upon Governor and Council approval, whichever Is
later.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

6/2/2022

Date

OecuSlo<Md by:

A S - fffy
I646*»44»,sceoMp. ... . .

NameT^atja s. fox

Title. Director

6/2/2022

Date

Office of Public Guardian
-Oo<u$igA«4 by:

-7C646»0p«3M«Pa

Name:^^"^"^ Mall on
Title. Executive Director

OfTice of Public Guardian

SS-2021-OBH-01 -GUARD.01 -AOl

A-S-1.2

Page 3 of 4
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

-OtyHon»d by;

6/3/2022 '
Date 'farne^'Ro&yfT Gua ri no

Title: ,
Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Office of Public Guardian A-S-1.2

SS-2021-DBH-01-GUARD-01-A01 Page 4 of 4
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JUN10'20 flnl0:5S DftS It /

t>er1 A.9Ubb(ttt '
Ceaexltfleocr

MHIaa A. St Cjrr.
CbltfLrftl Oflktr

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

department of health and human services

LEGAL AND REGULATORY SERyJCES

l29PLEASAPn'SmET,CONCX)IU).NH OJJOlOaST
603.271.9443 EiL 9443

Fei:603-371-19l2 TOO Acttn: 140a-73S-29<4
'.db)U.Qb.(«V

June 8. 2020

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord. New Hampshire 03^1

REQUESTED ACTION

Aulhorae the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Heatth.
to enter into Sole Source contracts with the vendors listed below in an amount not to exceed
$6,299,383 to provide public guardianship services, with the option to renew for up to two (2)
additional years, effective July 1. 2020, or upon Governor and Council approval, whichever is
later, through Juno 30, 2022. 2% Federal Funds. 98% General Funds.

Vendor Name
Vendor

Code
Area Served Contract Amount

Office of Public Guardian T66528-B001 Concord, NH K900,419

Trl-County Community
Action Prograrh

177195.B009

1

Berlin, NH $1,398^964

Total: $6,299,383

Funds are available In the following accounts for State Fiscal Year 2021. and are
anticipated to be available In State Fiscal Year 2022, upon the availability and continued
appropnation of funds In the.future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget line items
within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget Office,
if neeided andjustified.

SEE attached FISCAL DETAILS

05-96-92-922010-4114 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS
OEPT, HNS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DW. BUREAU OF MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES,

State
Fiscal Year

Class /

Account
Class Title Job Number Total Amount

2021 . 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92204114 $3,019,644.50

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92204114 $3,019,644.50

Subtofaf $6,039,289.00
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His Excellency, Gcvemor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorabte Council .

Page 2 of 3

05-95^-481010'92S5 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS
DEPT, HNS: ELDERLY & ADULT SVCS DIV, GRANTS FOR SOCIAL SVC PROG, SOCIAL
SERVICES BLOCK GRANT

State

Fiscal Year

Claeaf

Account
Class Title Job Number Total Amount

2021 102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 48130201 $130,047

2022 102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 46130201 $130,047

Subtotal $260,094

.  Total $6,299,383

.  EXPLANATION

This request is Sole Source because the vendors are the only vendors able to provide
the necessary services. RSA 547-B establishes the Public Guardianship and Protection Rogram
for guardianship services to be provided perNH RSA 135-0:60 and NH RSA 171-A:10. NHRSA
547-B:6 requires the Deparlrnent to contract with one or more organizations that the New
Hampshire Supreme Court has designated as a public guardianship and protection program. The
Office of Public Guardian and Tri-County Community Action Program are the only organizations
the New Hampshire Supreme Court has designated as public guardianship and protection
programs.

The purpose of this request Is to provide guardianship services, statewide, for up to 1092
individuals with mental Illness or developmental disabilities, as well as incapacitated adults wtio
aria abused, neglected cr exploited, leaving them at risk of substantial harm because of their
inability.to provide for their own food, shelter, health care, safety, or to manage their personal
affairs.

These services are necessary to meet the State's statutory obligations to safeguard
incapacitated Individuals who are in state institutions as well as In community mental health and
developmental service programs, statewide. Services provided ensure that the guardianships are
maintained and limited In accordance with the standards embodied in RSA 464-A from July 1,
2020 to June 30, 2022.

Contracted services Indude mentoring and training services for family members who are
willing to serve as guardian but who require a period of support. Providing this support will obviate
the need for a public guardian in these cases, which results in a ftscal savings due to not needing
to engage permanent public guardianship services.

Approval of the Contracts will allow the vendors to provide protection services, on a
statewide basis. These Contracts also meet the requirements of NH RSA 135-C:60, NH RSA 171-
A: 10. II and NH RSA 16l-F.52..The vendors agrro to seek reimbursement from other payer
sources, including eodal eecurtty, when providing protection services.

The attached Contracts Include language that resen^es the right to renew each contract
for up to tvM (2) additional years, subject to the continued availability of funds, 'satisfactory
performance of contracted services and Governor and Executive Council approval.
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His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Hbrwfabie Council

Page 3 of 3

Should the Governor and Counal not authorize this request the Department would be out
of compliance with the requirements of NH RSA 13^0: 60; NH RSA 171-A; 10. II; and NH RSA
161-f: 52. Additionally, individuals wHh mental illness, developmental disabilities and
incapacitated adults who are abused, neglected or exploited, would be left at risk of sutjstantial
harm because of their Inability to provide their own food. sheKer. health care, safety, or to manage
their personal affairs.

Areas served: Statewide.

Source of Funds; QFOA #93.667, FAIN #2001NHSQSR75

The Department will request General Funds in the event that Federal Funds are no longer
available and services are still needed.

Respectfully sub

.on A. Shiblnett

Commissioner

TJitDtporlmtntotHnllh end Human Strwctt'Mittien ii to join commtiniiiu ondfemU'm
inpnwdingeppertun'diafef eixiani te eefiUvt A«(UtA end indtptndenet.
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nMndaJOctiS

DS.fiS.92-02Mt(M114 HEALTM AMD SOCUL SERVICES. HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS OEPT OF. HHS:BEHAVtCRAL HEALTH OIV OF.

BUREAU OF'MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES. CUAROUNSHIP SVCS

Otfk* of Public Ouartflen

Class TItiB Class Account IncrBastllDocaastl Rtvlsod Amount

2021

Contrsca tor Proonm
Setvices

102S00731 saoo $2,320,162.50 $2,320,162.50

2022

CorU/bca tor ProQfim
Servioe*

t02-S0073l SO.OO $2,320.16^50 $2,320,182.50

Subforal to.eo $4,640,325.00 $4,640,325.00
.  •

TrKountv Communitv Action Proorim

StatoFlseil Vaar Class THI* ■ Class Account Curreni Amount Incrtasa/IDocraasal Rtvlsod Amount

2031

Conncu tor Progmn
Servieos

102-500731 50.00 $699,462.00 $aW.462.M

2022

Conbscu tor Prooam
Services

■ 102-500731 • $0.00 $699,462.00 $699,462.00

Subtottf fO.OO 51 396.964.00 51.396.064.00

OS-9S-4S-4«l9IO-92$5 HEALTH AND SOCUL SERVICES. HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DERT OF. HHS:ELO£RLV - ADULT SERVICES.
GRANTS TO LOCALS. SOCUL SERVICES BLOCK GRANT

ONIct Public OuarOlan

SialoFUca! Veer Class TJlIt ClBM Accounl CurrantAmouni incroase/ioocaasol Rtvlsetf Amourn

2021

Contracts tor Progam
Services

102-500734 $0.00 $130,047.00 $130,047.00

-  2022

Corwacts tor Progrwn

Services
102-500734 $0.00 $130,047.00 $130.047.W

Subtotal se.oo 5260.094.00 5260 094.00

Oand Total $0.00 $6,299,363.00 16.299.363.00

P»|e 1 clI
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rORM NVMBER P-37 (venioo 12/11/2019)

Sabjeeir.Ouardianship Services (SS-2021-DBH-01-GUARD-0I)

>4otlce: This apeement and all of its attadtments shall bceeme public upon nibmiision (o Oovemor end
Exccuiive Council to approval. Arty information thai b privtta, confidential or proprietary must
be dearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the oontrut

ACREEMBNT

The Stale of New Kampshiroand the Contractor hoeby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

l.l State Agency Name

New Hampshire Department of Keatlh and Human Scrvicn

1.2 SttteAgen^ Address

129 Pleasant Street

Concord. NH 03301.3237

1.3 Contractor Nimc

Office of Public Gu&rdmn

1.4 Contmctor Address

2 PilUbury Street, Suite 400 s
Concord, NH 03301

1.5 Conuactor Phone
Number

(603)224.8041

1.6 Account Number

05.95-92-922010-4114-

102-500731

05-95-48-481010-925$-
102-500734

1.7 Completion Date

June 30,2022

1.6 Price Limitation

$4,900,419

1.9 Contracting Officer for State AgeiiQr

Nathan 0. Whltal Director

1.10 State Agency Telephone Number

(603)271-9631

1. l^.-C0ntraetQ{:.Sip^e

f  Date:

1.12 Name and Tide of Contractor Si9i4tory

paejvoeiotr
Ager>cy Signptme 1.14 Neme and Title ofStete Agency Signatory

T13 Approval t^eN.K Department cfAdmlnlitraHoo. Division of Peraonnel (\fijfyUeehti)

By; Director. On:

1.16 Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and ̂ coition) ({f opplkablt) (

®y- Catherine Pinos, 05/08/20
1.17 Approvalby'tHeOovemorandExecutiveCouncil

OdkC Item number: O&C Meeting Date:

Poge .l of 4
Contrector Iniiials

bate
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2. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. Jht Sute of New
Hampshire, ecting ihrwgh the agency ideniifled in block I.I
C'State"X. cngeges contractor identified in block 1.3
("ConuiaoO to perform, and the Contractor shall p^orni. the
work or talc of goods, or both. identtBed and more particularly
desaibed In the attached EXHIBIT. B which is incorporated
herein by rcfvcnce ("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision bf this Agreement to the
conir^, and subject to the epprovel of (he Governor and
Executive Council of the State ofNew Hampshire, If applicable,
(hit Agreement, and ell obligations ofthe parties hcreunder, shall
become effective on the date the Governor and Executive
Council approve this Agreement as Indicated In block 1.17,
unless no such approval Is required, in which case the Agreement
shell become effective on the date the Agreement is signed by
(he State Agen^ as shown in block 1.13 ("Effective Date").
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Serviecs performed by. the Contractor prior to
-the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in (he event (hat (his Agreement does not become
effective, (he State shall have no liability to the Contractor,
including without limitation; any obligetion to pay the
Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete ell Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to (he
contrary; all .obligations of the Stale hcreunder. including
wdthout limitation, (he continuance of payments hcreunder, are
contingent upon (he availability and continued appropriation of
funds aflixtcd by any state or'federal legislative or executive
action that reduces, eliminates or otherwise modifies the
appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and
the Swpc for Services provided in EX>DBrr B. In whole or in
part. In no event shall the State be libble. for any payments
hcreunder in excess of su^ available appropriated funds. In the
event-of a reduction or termination of appropriated funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such fbnds
beeome.available, if ever, and shall have the right to reduce or
tenninatethe Scrvica under this Aercemcnt lmmedlatcly upon
giving the Contractor notice of such reduction or termination,
The State shali not be required to transfer funds from any other
account or source to the Account identlified in block 1.6 In the
event ftmds in that Account ore reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE^RICE LUV1ITATI0N/
PAYMENT.

5:1 The contract price, method ofpayment, and terms of payment
are identified and more particularly described In EXHIBIT C
which is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete rdmburaemeni to the Contractor for ell
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and (he complete

compensation to the Conpacior for the Services. The State shall
-  have no liability to (he Contractor other than the contract price.
5.3 The State reserves the right to offsa fiwt any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under (his Agreement those
liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA 80:7
through RSA 80:7< or any other provision of law.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision In this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in no
event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually mode
hcreunder, exoeed the Price Limitation set forth In block l.g

«. COMPLLANCC BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPOOTUNITY.
6.1 In connection with.the paformanoe of (He'Serviccs. the
Contractor shall comply with all applicable statutes, laws,

■ regulations, and orders of federal, state, county or municipal
authorities which impose any obligation or duty upon the

. Contractor, including but not limited to, civil rights and equal
employment opportunity laws. In addition, ifthis Agreement is
fbnded in any part by monies ofthe United States, the Contractor
shall comply with all federal executive orders, rules, regulations
and statutes, and with any rules, regubtions and guidelines as the
State or the United States issue to implement these regulations.
The Contractor shall also comply with el) applicable Ihielleetual
property laws. '
6.2 During the term of ̂is Agreement, the Contractor shall not
discriminate against employe Or applicants for emplqymtf t
because of race, color, religion, creed, age. sexi handicap, sexual
orientation, or national origin and will take affirmaiive action (o
prevent such discrimination.

6.3. The Contractor agrees to permit the State or United States
access to any ofthe Contractor's books, records and accounts for
(he purpose ofascertaining compliance with ell rules, regulations
and orders, and the cov^ants, terms and conditions of this
Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all personnel
necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor warrants that
all personnel engaged in the Services shall be qualified to
perform the Services,' end shall be properly-licensed and
otherwdse authorized to do so under all applicable laws.
7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing during the term of
(his Agreement, end for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire, and
shall not permit any subcontractor or other pason, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State employee
or official, who is matierially involved in (he procurement,
administration or performance of this Agreement This
provision shall survive termination of this Agreement.
7.3 The Contacting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, shall be the State's representative. In the event of any
dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement, the
Contracting Officer's decision shall be final for the State.

Page 2 of 4
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B. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.
8.1 Any one or more of (he following acts or'omi&sions of the
Contreaor chall constitute en event of default hereundo C'Event
ofDefeulf*):
8.1.1 &ilure to perform the Servtoa satisfactorily or on
schiidule;
8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, torn or condition of
this Agreement
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Defeult, the Stale may
take any one, or more, or all. of the following actions:.
8.2.1 give the Contractor o written notice specifying (he Evcni of
Default and'requiring it to be remedied within, in the absence of
a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30) days from the .
' date ofthencrtice; and Ifthe Event of Default is not timely cured,
terminate this A^eement, effedive two (2) days after giving the
Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that, the portion of die contract price
which,would otherwise accrue to the Connctor during the '
period froni the date of such notice until such time as (he Stale
determines that (he Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to (he Contnctor;
8.2.3 give the Contnctor a'writtcn notice specifying the Event of
Default and set off against any ether obligations (he State may
owe to the Contractor any damages the Slate suffers by reason of
any Event of Default; and/or
8.2.4 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default, treat the Agreement as breached, terminate the
Agreement and pursue any of its remedies at law or In equity, or
both.

8.3. No failure by the State to enforce any provisions hereofafter
any Event of Default shall be dedned a waiver ofils rights vHth
regard to that Event of Default, or any subsequent Event of
Default. No express failure to enforce any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of the right of (he State to enforce each and
all of the provisions hereof upon any fufih.er or other Event of
Default on the part of the Contractor. i

P. TERMINATION.

9.1 Notwithstanding paragraph 8, the State may, at its sole
discretion, terminate (he Agreement for any reason, in whole or
in part, by thirty (30) doys written notice to the Contractor (hat
the Stale is exercising its option to (erminote the Agreement.
9.2 In the event of an early termination of this Agrecmwu for
any reason other than Uic completion of (he Seryices, (he
Contractor shall, at the Stole's discretion, deliver to the
Contracting Officer, not later than ft fteen (15) days after the date
of termination, o report ('Termintdon Report") describing in
detail ail Services performed, and the contract price earned, lo
and ineluding the date of termination. The form, subject matter,
content, and number of copies of the Termtniiion Report shall
be identical to those ofany Final Report described in the attached
EXHIBIT. B. In addition, at (he State's diso-etion. the Contractor
shall, vriihin 15 days of notice of early termination, develop and

Page

submit to the State a Transition Plan for tervioes under (he -
Agreement

10. DATA/ACCESS/OONFIDENTULrrv/

PRESERVATION.

10.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all
Information and things develc^ed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason ofi (his
A^cement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, forrhulae. surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses, graiiAie
representations, computer programs, computer ̂thtouts, notes,
letters, memoranda, papei^ and documents, all whether
finished or unfinished.

10.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with fiinds provided for that purpose
under this Agreemeiit, shall be the property of (he State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon termination
of (his Agreement for any reason.
10.3 Confidentiality of data shall be gdvemed by N.K RSA
chapter 91 -A or other existing law. Disclosure of data requires
prior written approval of the State.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO TOE STATE. In the

performance of this Agreement the Contractor Is in all respects
an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor an
employee of the Stole. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members Vull have authority to
bind the Slate or receive any benefits, workers' compensation or
other emoluments provided by the State to its employees. -

12. assignment/delecation/subcontbacts.
12.1 The Contractor shall, not asslgrt, pr othervHsa transfer any
interest in this Agreement >^(houl the prior written notice, which
sholl be provided to the State at least fifteen.(15) days prior to
the assignment, and a written consent of the State. For purposes

' of this paragraph, a Change of Control shell constitute
assignment. "Change of Control" means (a) merger,
consolidaliwi, or.a tronnction or series of related bansactions in
which D third party, together with its affiliates, becomes (he
direct or indirect owner of fifty percent (50%) or more of the
voting shaies cr similar equity interests, or combined voting
power of the Contractor, or (b) the sale of all or substantially all
ofihe assets of the Controctor.

12.2 None of the Services shall be subconlrocted by the
Contractor without prior written notice, and consent of the State.
The Stale is entitled to copies of all subcontracts and assignment
agreements and sholl not be bound by ony provisions contain^
in a subcontract or an assignment agreement to which It is r>ot a
party.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. Unless otherwise exempted by law.
the Contractor ̂ all indemnify and hold harmless the State, its
officers'and employees, from and ogainst ony ond all claims,
liabilities and costs for any personal injury or property damages,
patent or copyright infringement, or other claims asserted against
(he State, its officers or employees, which arise out of (or which
may be claimed to arise out oO the acts or omission of the
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'Coninctor, or tubcontreaor's, Including bul not limited to the
negHgonce. reckteu or intentionol condua The Stete shtill not
be liable for any cosu incurred by the Contraaor arising under
(his parapaph i3. No^thsisrrdingthoforgoing, nothingherein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of(he sovereign
immuiti^ ofthe State, which Immunity is hereby reserved to the
State. This covqianl in paragraph 13 shall survive the
terminaUon of (his Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

■  14.1 The Contractor shall, at Its sole expense, obtain and
continuously maintain in force, and stell require .any
subcontractor or assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the
following iruuranoe:
14.1.1 ccmmcrda! general liability insurance against all claims
of bodily Injury, death or property damage, in amounts of not
less than Sl.OM.ODO per occurrence and $2,000,000 aggregate
or excess; and .
14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering aJI property
subject 10 subparagraph 10.2 herein, in an cmount not less than
80H of the wiwic replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies desaibed in subparagraph M.I herein shall be
on poiicy'forms and endorsements appro^ for use in the Slate
of New Hampshire by .the N.K p^artment of Insurance, and
issued by Insurers licensed In (he State of New Hampshire.
14.3 The Contractor shall fumish to the Contracting Officer
Identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a cerlificate(s)of
Insurance for all Insurance required under this AgreemenL
Contractor shall alM fumish to the Contracting Officer identified
in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(t) of insurance
for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this Agreement no
later than ten (10) days prior to the expiration date of each
insurance policy. The certifica(e(s) of insurance md any
renewals thereof shall be attached and are Incorporated herein by
refer.ence.

15. WORKERS* COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees, certifies
and wammts that the Ccntrector is in compliance with or exempt
from, the requirements of N.K RSA chapter 281-A ("Worken'
Compensothn").
15.2 To the extent the Contractor Is subject to the requirements
of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall maintain, and.
require any subcontractor or assignee to secure and maintain,
payment' of Workers* Compensation in connection with
activities which the person proposes to undertake pursuant to this
AgreemenL The Contractor shall fuml^ the ContractingOfncer
identified In block 1,9, or his or her successor, proof of Workers'
Compensation in the manner.described in N.H. RSA chapter
281-A and any applicable renewal(s) thereof, which shell be
attached and are incorporated herein by reference. The State
shall not be responsible for payment of any Workers'
Compensation premiums or for any other claim or benefit for
Contractor, or any subcontractor or employee of Contractor,
which might arise under applicable State of New Hampshire
Workers' Compensation laws in connection with (be
performance of ihe Services under this Agreement.

16. N0T1C£> Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at tfic time
of mailing by certified rnail, postage prepaid. In a United States
Post Office addressed to (he parties at the addresses given in
blocks 1.2 and t.4, herein.

17. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended, waived
or discharged only by an Instrument in writing signed by the
parties hereto and only after approval of such amendment,
waiver or discharge by the Oovdmor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire unless no such approval is required
under the circumstances pursuant to State law,-rule or policy.

18. CHOICE OP LAW AND FORUM. This Agreement shall
be governed. Interpreted and construed in accordance with the
laws ofthe State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties end their respective successors
and assigns. The Wording used in (his Agreement is the wording
chosen by the parties to express (heir mutqel intent, and no rule
of construction shall be applied againfl or'In favor of any party.
■Any actions arising out of this Agreement shall be brought end
rriainlalned in New Hampshire Supaior Court which shall have
exclusive jurisdiction thereof.

19. CONFLICTING TERMS. In the event of a conflict
between the terms of (his P-37 form (as modified in E)CHlBrr
A) and/or attachments ^ amendment thereof, the terms of the.
P-37 (u modified in EXHIBIT A) shall control.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not Intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement sh'all not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement are
for reference purposes only, and (he words contained therein
shsil in no way be held to explain, modily, arriplify or eld In the
inlerpreiaiion, construction or meaning of (he provisions of this
Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional or modifying
provisions set forth in the enached EXHIBIT A are incorporated
herein by reference.

23. SEVERAfilLITY. Intheeventonyofiheprovlsionsofthls
Agreement ere held by a ct^rt of competent Jurisdiction to be
contrary to any slate or federal law, the remaining provisions of
(his Agreement will remain In full force and effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may be
executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall be
deemed an original, constitutes the entire agreement and
undersundlng between the parties, and supersedes all prior
agreements and understandings with respect to (he subject matter
hereof.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Guardianship Services

.  EXHIBIT A

REVISIONS TO STANDARD CONTRACT PROVISIONS

1. Revisions to Form p-37, General Provisions

1.1. Paragraph 3, Subparagraph 3.1, Effective Date/Completion of Services, is
amended as follows:

3.1. Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, and"
subject to the approval of the Governor and Executive Council of the
Slate of New Hampshire as indicated in block 1.17, this Agreement, and
ail obligations of the parties hereundef, shall become effective on July 1.
2020 ('Effeclive Date").

1.2. Paragraph 3. Effeclive Dale/Completion of Services. Is amended by adding
.subparagraph 3.3 as follows:

3.3. The parties may extend the Agreement for up to two (2) additional year(s)
from the Completion pate, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of
services, available funding, agreement of.the parties; and approval of the
Governor and Executive Council.

1.3. Paragraph 12, Assignment/Oelegation/Subcont'racts. Is amended by adding
subparagraph 12.3 as follows:

12.3. Subcohlractors are subject to thevsame contractual coridilions as the
Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor
compliance with those conditions. The Contractor shall have written
agreements with all subcontractors, specifying the work to be perfornne.d
and how corrective action shall be managed if the subcontractor's
performance is inadequate., The Contractor shall manage the
subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis and take corrective
action as necessary. The Contractor shall annually provide the State with
a list of all subcontractors provided for under this Agreement and notify
the Stale of any inadequate subcontractor performance.

ppj
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EXHIBIT B

Scope of Services

1. statement of Work

1.1.Scope of Work Applicable to ail Guardianship Services
1.1.1. For the purposes of Ihis agreement, all references to days shall mean

calendar days.

1.1.2. For the purposes of this agreement ward shall mean the individual for
whom guardianship of the individual arid/or estate is appointed' by the
Circuit Court - Pro.bate Division.

1.1.3. The Contractor shall provide public guardianship and protection services
to-safeguard the liberty and well-being of individuals who. because of
functional limitations, have suffered, are-suffering, or are likely to suffer
substantial harm due to an inabiiity to:

1.1.3.1. Provide personal needs'for food, clothing, shelter, health
care or safely: or

1.1.3.2. Manage their property or financial affairs.

1.1.4. The Contractor shall provide public guardianship and protection services
to persons at risk of harm to themselves, .their estates or- both the persdn
and estate, for whom the State of New Hampshire has a responsibility
to safeguard pursuant to New Harnpshire (NH) Revised Statutes
Annotated (RSA) ■135-C:60. Guardianship; NH RSA 161-F;5.2,
Guardianship; and NH RSA 171-A:10i Residential Servic.es; Legal .
Counsel and Guardianship.

1.1.5. The Contractor shall p/ovide public guardianship services to persoris in
Section 1.1.4, statewide, in accordance with NH RSA464-A, Guardians
and .Conservators and NH RSA 547-B, Public. Guardianship and
Protection Program, which include' appointments as guardian,
conservator, or temporary guardiah of the person and/or estate of a
ward.

1.1.6. The Contractor will provide protection sen/ices to persons In Paragraph
1.1.4. statewide, that Include actions necessary to carry out the duties
as a duly deslgnaled representative or protective payee; client
representative; attorney-in-fact; or other similar agent, as prescribed by
applicable law, rule, or agreement.

1.1.7. the Contractor shall provide services to Individuals only upon receiving •
prior approval from the Department of Health and Huriian Services,
Office of Client and Legal Services or-the Bureau of Elderly and Afiulf
Services.

1.1.8. The Contractor shall refer clients to the Disability Rights Center - NH.
the New Hampshire Legal Assistance or other a.Horney when referrals.

Office of PubtcGuaidisn Contreclof Inllials •
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from the Department's Office of Client, and Legal Services , for
guardianship and proteclion services may be inappropriate, in order that
an administrative appeal, or other appropriate legal action, can be taken
on behalf of the client.

1.1.9. The Contractor shall direct any referrals for Individuals made to the
Contractor for guardianship and protection services to the Department's
Office of Client and Legal Services when referrals are received from
agencies that include, but are not limited to:

1.1.9.1. The Glencliff Home for the Elderly;

1.1.9.2. New Harhpshlre Hospital;

1.1.9.3. Comrhunity agencies in the mental health system;

1.1.9.4. Agencies In the developmental services system; and

1.1.9.5. Agencies in the adult and elderly system.

1.1.10. ■ The Contractor shall not be reimbursed by the Department for services
in the event the Contractor provides guardianship and protection
services to individuals who are not screened and approved by the
Department's Office of Client and Legal Services or Bureau of Elderly
and Adult Services, unless the Contractor:

1.1.10.1. Provides documentation isatisfactory to the Department that
circumstances not within the control of the Contractor
occurred and the Contractor made reasonable efforts to
decline the guardianship appointments.

1.1.10.2: Includes documentation of the efforts made to decline
guardianship appointments with its monthly Invoices.

1.1.10.3. The Stale has responsibility to safeguard the person
pursuant to RSA 135-C;60. RSA 171-A:10. II. and RSA 161-
F:52.

1.1.11. The Contractor shall provide guardianship and proteclion services lo
individuals as defined in paragraph 1.1.4, in accordance with the
"Standards of Practice" and "A Model Code of Ethics for "Guardians'
developed by the National Guardianship Association.

1.1.11.1. Notwithslandihg the ethics and standards for guardians cited
"In Paragraph 1.1.11, for monthly visits, the Contractor shall
make quarterly face-to-face visits with the ward or more
frequent visits as required in individual circumstances, in
.accordance with Contractor's accepted practice.

1.1.11.2. The Contractor shall attempt to have a video conference, or
telephone contact if technology for a video conference is not

Office olPutJiic Guardian ConUectof IniUals,
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available, with the ward in the instance the ward is out of the
State of New Harhpshire for an extended period of time and
it would not be feasible for the Contractor to see the ward
face to face on the basis outline in Section 1.1.11.1 above.

1.1.11.3. The Contractor may suspend face-io-face visits, as required
in Section 1.1.11.1 until an alternative plan-can be developed
that maintains personal safety of all parlies, if the ward
exhibits unsafe behavior or is in unsafe environmental or
public health conditions, or is aggressive to the point of
physical harrn to the Contractor.

1.1.12. In any action brought in Circuit Court-Probate Divislori to limit or
otherwise reduce the scope of a guardianship over an individual served,

■  the State shall appear with the Contractor where th'e State agrees that It .
is necessary to present the State's position on the action proposed.

1.1.13. The Contractor shall not provide" individuals with direct services, which
include:

1.1.13.1. Psychotherapy;

1.1.13.2. Case rnanagement;

1.1.13.3. Transportation;

1.1.13.4. Financial aid; or

1.1.13.5. Other social services available through governmental or
nonprpftt agencies.

1.1.14. The Contractor agrees to work closely with the Bureau, of Elderly and
Adult Services Adult Protection Social Workers for a period, to be
determined by the level of need following a referral.' to support the
client's transition from protection services .provided by the State" to
guardianship services provided by the Contractor. The Contractor
agrees that the Department's Bureau of Elderly and Adult Services,
Adult Protection.Sen/Ice Social Workers retains the case management
function of the clients during the transition period.

1.1.15. The Contractor has responsibilities as an independent decision-maker
acting in a fiduciary capacity with respect to the individuals served and
the decisions to be made on behalf of individuals shall not be directed
or influenced by the State.

1.1.16. The Contractor may provide guardianship and protection services to
Individuals other than those who are referred for services pursuant to
this Agreem8nt..ensu'ring:

1.1.16.1. Pursuant to NH RSA $47 8: 7. no funds provided under this
Agreement are expended for those persons.

Office of PuWic Guarcfian Coniraclof Irttials
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1.1.16.2. Sufficient records, which are subject to the Department's
examination, are included and clearly document that the
•funds received under this Agreement are emended in.
accordance with this Agreement.

1.1.17. The Contractor shall accept and Investigate complaints from the
Department regarding services performed, including the-circumstances
pertaining to the complaint, and ensure a written response containing
the results of the investigation is submitted to the Department no later
than thirty (30) days from the date .the complaint is received by the
contractor.

1.1.18. The Contractor shall allow wards to participate in consumer salisfaclion
surveys unless the Conlractor provides written reasons to. the
Department that state why a particular ward should not be allowed to
participate.

1.1.19. The Contractor agrees that If the performance of services involves the
collection, transmission, storage, or disposition of data on behalf of the
Department including substance use disorder (SUD) data'created by a
Part 2 provider, the Contractor shall miajntain the data s.ubject to the
requirenrien.ts^stated in 45 CFR Part 2.

•1.2. Guardianship Services

1.2.1. The listing and description of services to be provided to wards are not
intended to restate existing rules and regulations currently In place, but
rather to, clarify the relationship of the Contractor with respect to its
wards who need and receive services in the developmerital services;
mental heallh services; or.elderly and adult systems.

1.2.2. The Conlraclo.r agrees that all of the responsibilities referenced in
Subsection 1.2 are contingent upon the actual authority granted in each
individual court order .specifying the extent and Scope of guardianship
for each individual ward. ,

1.2.3. The Contradtor shall make decisions regarding the reslderitial and day
placement of each ward, utilizing:

1.2.3.1. The standards of least restrictive environment; and

1.2.3.2. What is in the best interests of the Individual ward.

1.'2.4. The Contractor shall ensure all legally necessary steps are "taken to
enable the Individual ward to receive comprehensive:

1.2.4.1. Evaluations; and

1.2.4.2. Treatment and services.

Office of PuWic Guardian Conlrocldr Irttlals,
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1.2.5. The Contractor shall advocate for and request all necessary and
appropriate services to which the ward is entitled In accordance with:
1.2.5.1. The ward's service and/or treatment plan;

1.2;5.2. The ward's expressed preferences or best interests
consistent with the Contractor's Code of Ethics and National
Guardianship .Association Standards of Practice; arid

1.2;5.3. Established Department standards and State law. including
seeking alternative service providers.

1.2.6. The Contractor shall be available to give or withhold consent to
proposed care, when legally necessary, which includes, but Is not limited
to;

. 1.2.6.1. Medical care;

1.2.6.2. ■ Professional care;

1.2.6.3. Counseling:

1.2.6.4. Treatment;

1.2.6.5. Behavioral health sen/ices;

1:2.6.6. Changes to service and/or treatment plans; and

1.2.6.7. Other clinically or legally significant treatment plans or
services.

1.2.7. The Contractor shall ensure the ward's civil rights are protected within
the context.of the decisiqn-rnaking on behalf of the ward, while refraining
from unwarranted intrusion into the life of the ward.

1.2'.8. The Contractor shall be available'to make all decision as required by
RSA 464-A:26.and work .collaboratively with the Department relative to
any of the ward's debts owed to the State of New Hampshire, if the
Contractor l.s guardian of the ward's estate.

1.2.9. The Contractor shall remain current of the facts or circumstances that
may Impact the decisions to perform the functions specified in
Subsection 1.2.

1.2.10. The Contractor shall maintain appropriate contact with each ward to
ensure services reflecl the personal preferences, values, and desires of
the ward to the fullest extent possible in order to make informed
decisions on behalf of the ward.

1.2.11. The Contractor shall obtain all available information regarding the ward
or the ward's situation iri order to be fully aware of all risks and benefits
of any proposed course of action, as well as any alternatives that may

Oflico of Public Guartfian Conlractof IniliBis.
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exist when making decisions on behalf of the ward. The Coritfactor, In
addition to having required personal contact with the ward, may:

1.2.11.1. Contact other important and significant people in the ward's
life.

1.2.11.2. Interact with the ward's case manager.

1.2.11.3.- Interact wi.th others who share responsibility for meeting the
needs of the ward.

T.S.Guardianship and Protection Services

1.3.1. The Contractor shall accept all protection services cases referred .by the
Department's Ofnpe'of Client and Legal Services or Bureau of Elderly
and Adult Services.

1.3.2. The Departrrient shall make every attempt to obtain a Release of
Information -from the proposed client for the -Contractor, except wtiere

.  " prohibited from doing so by law.

. 1.-3.3. The Conlraclor shall be involved in the screening process for proteclibn
cases, as appropriate, of refer the client to the Disability Rights Center -
NH. New Hampshire Legal Assistance or other attorney In order that an
administrative appeal'or other appropriate legal action can be taken on
behalf of the client.

1.3.4. • For persons referred to Conlraclor by the Department's Office.of Client
and Legal Services pursuant to NH RSA 136-0:60 and .NH RSA 171-
A:10'll, the Contractor shall serve the current total of 732 wards
receiving guardianship services as well as any new persons referred for
services, In accordance with pafdgraph-1.1.7 above, for,a total of up to
770 cases during the contract period.

1.3.5. The Conlraclor shall receive letters of approval for each-new case
assigned to the Contractor by the Department's-Office of, Client and
Legal Services.

1.3.6. The Contractor shall provide guardianship services for no more than 42
persons," as referred- by the Bureau of Elderly and Adult Services

, pursuant to NH RSA 161-F:52. at any point in lime during the contract
period.

1.3.7. The Contractor shall schedule a training with New Hampshire Hospital
no later than November 15, 2020, which shall:

1.3.7.1. Address the roles and responsibilities of:

1.3.7.1.1. The Contractor;

1.-3.7.1.2. New Hampshire Hospital; and

Office oIPub«cG,uarcfl8f» ■ • ConUecfof Iniitals
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1.37.1.3. Community agencies.

1.3.7.2. Address the legal and ethical obligations and limitations of
the Contraclor.

1.3.7.3. Develop best practices relative lo service planning in order to
facilitate discharge of patients as soon as practicable.

1.4. Technical Assistance

1.4.1. The Contractor may provide technical assistance to private guardians or
training to staff that provide direct services lo wards who are clients of

- the Department, which includes;

1.4.1.1. Area agency staff; and

1.4.1.2. Mental health staff.

1.4.2; The Contractor shall provide the technical assistance or training
described In Paragraph'1.4.1, only after receiving confifmalion from the
private guardian or the agency staff that specifies, the Office pf Client
and Legal Services approved 'specified number of hours for .technical
assistance or training over a period not to exceed six (6) months.

1.4.3. The Contractor may provide technical assistance for up to ten (10)
private guardians per year.

1.-5. Staffing

1.5.1. The Contractor shall ensure staff providing guardianship services
successfully complete a minlrnum of 20 hours of orientation, training.

1.5.2. The Contractor shall ensure staff providing guardianship services
successfully complete a minimum of 10 hours of continuing education,
annually.

2. Exhibits Incorporated

2.1. The Contractor shall use and disclose Protected Health Information in
compliance with the Standards for Privacy of Individually identifiable .Health
Information (Privacy Rule) (45 CFR Parts 160 and 164) under the Health
■Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) of 1996, and in
accordance with the attached Exhibit I, Business Associate Agreement, which
has been executed by the parties.

2.2. The Contractor .shall manage all confidential data related to this Agreement in
accordance with the terms of Exhibit K. DHHS Information Security
Re.qulrements.

2.3. The Contractor shall comply wilh all Exhibits D through K. which are attached
hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

3. Reporting Requirements

Office ol Public Guartfen Conueclor Inliials

SS-202i.DBH-0l-GUARD-01 Page 7 of 9 Pale



DocuSign Envelope ID; 2495F63A-F4FF-42AA-B880-E3DAEA985CA2

OocuSign Envelope ID: D142FP94-09BE-4BOA-91DO-EC3O313S8F74

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Guardianship Services

EXHIBIT B

3.1. The Contractor shall provide quarterly reports of all written complaints filed
against the Contractor, which includes:

3.1.1. A copy of the written complaint.

3.1.2. Steps taken to resolve the complaint.

'3.1.3. The date that the complaint was resolved.

3.1.4. Steps to be taken In the following quarter to mitigate similar complaints
^  from being filed In the future.

3.2. The Contractor shall provide an annual report, no later than August 1*' that
identifies name's of guardians providing services with the number of continuing
education hours obtained over the previous 12 month, ensuring supporting
documentation is available for Department review upon request.

4. Performance IVleasures

4,1. The Contractor shall actively and regularly collaborate with the Department to
enhance contract management. Improve results, and adjust program delivery
and policy based on successful outcomes.'

5. Additional Terms

5.1. Impacts Resulting frorfi Court Orders or Legislative Changes

5.1.1. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future slate or federal
legislation or court orders may have an Impact on the Services described
herein, the State has the right to modify Service priorities and
expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to. achieve
corhpliance therewith.

5.2. Culturally and Linguistically Appropriate Services (CLAS)

5.2.1. The Contractor shall submit and comply with a detailed description of
the language assistance services they will provide to persons with
llmltecl English proficiency and/or hearing impairment to ensure
meaningful access to their programs and/or services within ten (10) days
of the contract effective dale.

5.3.Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations

5.3.1., In the operation of any facilities for providing services, the Contractor
shall comply with ali laws, orders and regulations of federal, state,
county anid muriicipal authorities and with any direction of any Public
Officer or officers pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty
upon the contractor with respect to the operation of the facility or the
provision of the.services at such facility. If any governmental license or
permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the
performance of the said services, the Contractor will procure said license
or permit, and will at all limes comply with the terms and conditions of

Olflce ol PubOc Guardian Conlractor Ihiiials 1^"^
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each' such license or permit, tn connection with the foregoing
requirements, the Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during
the term of this Contract the facilities shall comply with all rules, orders,
regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire.Marshat and
the local fire protection agency, and shall be in conformance with local
building and zoning codes, by-laws and regulations.

S. Records

6.1. The -Contractor shall keep records that include, but are not limited to:

' 6.1.1. ' Books, records; documents and other electronic or physical data
evidencing and reflecting all costs and other expenses incurred by the
Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all income received
or collected by the Contractor.

6.1.2. All records must be maintained in accordance with accounting
procedures and practices, which sufficiently and properly reflect all such
costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original -
evidence of costs such as purchase requisitions, and orders, vouchers,
requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of in-kind contributions.

•  labor tirne cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by
the Department. ■ .

6.1.3.. Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for eiach rec.ipianl of
services, which records shall include all records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each
such recipient), records regarding-the provision of services and all
invoices submitted to the Department to obtain payment for such
services.

6.-1 A. Medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

6.2. During the term of-this Contract and the period for retention hereunder. the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and
any of their designated representatives shall have access to all reports and
records maintained pursuant to the Contract for purposes of audit, examination,

. excerpts and transcripts. Upon the purchase by the Department of the maximum
number of units provided for in the Contract and upon paymerit' of the price
limitation hereunder. the Contract and airtheobligalions of the parties hereunder ■
(except such obligations as. by the terms of the Conlracfare to be performed after
the end of the term of this Contract and/or survive the termination of the Contract)
shall terminate, provided however, that if, upon review of the Final Expenditure
Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shail retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct
the amount of such expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the
Contractor.

Officfl ol Public Guardian Contractof Inllials 1^^
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Payment terms

1. This Agreement is funded by:

1.1. '97% General funds.

1.2. 3% Federal funds. Department of Health and Human Services,
Administration for Children and Families, Social Services Block Grant

CFDA #93.667, FAIN #2001NHSOSR75

2.. For the purposes of this Agreement:

2.1. The Department has identified the Contractor as a Subrecipient. in
accordance with 2 CFR 200.0. et seq.

2.2. The de minlmis indirect Cost Rate of 10% applies In accordance with 2
CFR §200.414. , ■

2.3. The Department has identified this Contract 'as NON-R&D, In
accordance with 2 CfR §200.87.

3. The. State shall pay the Contractor a per diem, per case rate for services
provided in fulfilirnent of this Agreement in accordance with the per diem rates
as follows:

3.1. The per diem 'feimbursemenl rate for the provision of guardianship over
the person' services or guardianship over the estate services, as
approved by the Office of Client and Legal Services for all Bureau of
Mental Health Services or Bureau of Developmental Services'wards,
shall be $8.25 per ward, per day, for up to 770 wards, as follows:.

3.1,1. The per diem rate shall be $8.25 per ward per day for
guardianship over the person services.

"3.1.2. The per diem rate shail be $8.25 per ward per day for
guardianship over the estate services.

3.1.3. In the, instance when the Contractor is the guardian over the
person and guardian over the estate of a ward, the Department
shall reimburse the Contractor for each service in accordance

with 3.1,1 and 3.1.2 above.

3.2. The hourly reimbursement rate for the provision of training in Exhibit 8
Section 1. Subsection 1.4, and Paragraph 1.4.1 shall be $60.00, not to

.  exceed 25 hours for. a total amount of $1,500.00.

3.3. The per diem reimbursement rate for the provision of guardianship over
the person services or guardianship over the estate services as
requested by the Bureau of Elderly and Aduli Services shall be $8.25,
per ward, per day, for up to 42 wards; as follows:

3.3.1. The per diem rate shall be $8.25 per ward per day for

Office of PuWiC 6u3#dl8n ErfilbOC ConUndar Inltbts
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3

guardianship over the person services.

3.3.2. The per diem rate shall be $8.25 per ward per day for
guardianship over the estate services.

3.3.3. In the instance when the Contractor is the guardian over the
person and guardian over the estate of a ward, the Department
shall reimburse.the Contractor for each service in accordance

■ with 3.3.1 and 3.3.2 above.

3.4. the per diem rates will be extended to the last day of the month following
the month in which the ward dies or for whom guardianship service are
terminated.

3.5. For wards referred for guardianship services by the Bureau of Elderly
and Adult Services, the actual cost paid by Contractor for expenses
incurred in the performance of Contractors duties for guardianship over •
the estate under Ihis Agreement, Including, but not. limited to. filing fees,

'  ' bond costs-and appraisal fees where no other source of reimbursement
exists, shall nol exceed $3,574.50.

4. Payment, to the Contractor for the provision of services requested by the
Department's Bureaus of fi,flental Health-Services or Developmental Services
shall be made on a monthly basis subject to the following conditions:

4.1. The Contractor shall" submit.invoices on a monthly basis in accordance
with procedures and instructions established by the Office of Client and
Legal Services and provided to the Contractor.

4.2. The Contractor shall submit.a list of wards served during the month with
the monthly.invoice.-

4.3. The Deparlmerit shall pay the Contractor in accordance with .the per
diem rates identified iri Section 3.'

4.4. The Contractor may be compensated for time spent traveling and
' appearing In the Circuit Court-Probate .Division preceding appointment,,
as follows:

4.4.1. The hourly rate of $60.00 shall be billed using a six (6) minute
unit by submitting a monthly invoice that details the aclual time
spent.

4.4.2. The maximum billable amount for each case preceding
•appointment by the Circuit. Court-Probate Division shall b6
$300 per case.

" 4.5. .-The Contractor shall provide a copy of the court notice to the Department
with the monthly Invoice when the Confra.ctor is appointed guardian over
the person and/or guardian over the estate and when the Conlfactor no

Office of Public Guardian ErfiiWiC Coniiociof ii^Hbii
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longer provides guardianship over the person and/or estate.

!4.6. The Contractor shall review cases referred by (he Office of Client and
. Legal Services on a monthly basis and transfer Individuals to a different
funding mechanism, if possible, to allow more openings for additional
referrals from the Office of Client and Legal Services..

4.7. The Contractor shall transfer the ward from the Office of Client and Legal
Services funded slot within sixty (60) days of alternate funding becoming
available..

5. Payment to the Contractor for the provision of services requested by the
Bureau of Elderly and Adult Services (6EAS) shall be made on a monthly basis'
subject to the .following conditions;

5.1. The Contractor shall submit invoices on a monthly basis in accordance
with procedures and instructions established by the Bureau of Elderly
and Adult Services and provided to the Contractor.

5.2.- The Contractor shall submit a list of wards served during the month with
the monthly invoice.

5.3. The Department shall pay the Contractor in accordance with the per
diem rates identified in Section 3.

5.4. The Contractor shalj provide a copy of the court notice to the Departnienl
with the monthly invoice when the Contractor Is appointed guardian of a
person and/or guardian over the estate and when the Contractor no
longer provides guardianship over the person and/or the estate.

5.5. The Contractor shall review cases on a monthly basis and transfer ■
individuals to a different funding mechanism, if possible, to .allow more
openings for additional referrals frorn BEAS.

5.6. The Contractor shall transfer wards from a BEAS funded slot within sixty
(60) days of alternate funding becoming available.

6. -The Contractor shall seek reimbursement from other payer sources when
providing protection services as described in Paragraph 1.1.16 of Exhibit B,
Scope of Services. The Department shall not reimburse for services under this ■
Agreement for protection services described in Paragraph 1.1.16" of Exhibit B,
Scope of Services.

1. The Contractor shajl submit an Invoice in a form satisfactory to the State by the
fifteenth (15th) working day of the following month, which identifies and
requests reimbursement for authorized expenses incurred in the prior month.

6. The Contractor shall ensure each invoice Is completed, dated and returned to
the Department in order to initiate payment.

9. In lieu of hard copies, all i.nvoices may be assigned an electronic signature and

OfftCB of PuWfC Guardian ExWbllC ConlfBClof Inruau 1^^-^
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emailed to dhhs.dbhinvoicesmhs@dhhs.nh.gov, or invoices may be mailed to:

-  Tanja Godtfredsen
Department of.Heaith and Human Services
105 Pleasant Street

Concord. NH 03301

10. ■ The State shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30).days'of receipt
of each invoice, subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice and If
sufficient funds are available, subject to Paragraph 4 of the General Provisions
Form Number P-37 of this Agreement.

11. The'final invoice shall be due to the State no later than forty (40) days aflerthe
contract completion date specified in Form P-37. General Provisions'Block 1.7
Corhpletlon Date. • '

12. The Contractor must provide the services in Exhibit 8. Scope of Services, in
compliance with funding requirements.

13.. The Contractor agrees that funding under this Agreerhent may be withheld, in
whole or in part In the event of non-compliance with the terms and conditions
of Exhibit B. Scope of Services.

14. Notwithstanding anything to the contrail herein, the Contractor agrees that
funding under this agreement may be withheld, in whole or In part, in the event
of non-compliance with any Federal or State law, rule, or regulation applicable
to.the services pro.vided, or If the said services or products have not been
salisfaclorily completed in accordance with the terms and conditions pf this
agreement.

15. Notwithstanding Paragraph 18 of the General Provisions Form P-37, changes
(  limited to adjusting amounts within the price' limilalion and adjusting
encumbrances between State Fiscal Years and budget class lines through the
Budget Office may be made by written agreement, of both pa.rties, without
obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council, if needed and

•  justifi.ed.

16. .Audits

16.1. The Contractor.ls required to submit an annual audit-to the Department
if any of the following conditions exist:

16.2. Condition A - The Contractor expended $750,000 or more In federal
.  funds received as a subrecipient pursuant to 2 CFR Part 200, during the
most recently completed fiscal year.

16.3. Condition 8 - The Contractor Is subject, to audit pursuant to the
requirements of NH RSA 7:28. lll-b, pertaining to charitable
organizations receiving support of $1,000,000 or more.

Office of PyWic Guartfan EiAWi c Conir»ciof inaiatj
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16;4. Condition C - The Contractor is a public cornpany and required by
Security and Exchange Comrnission (SEC) regulations to submit an
annual financial audit.

16.5. If Cphdition A exists, the Contractor shall submit an annual single audit
performed by an independent.Certified Public Accountant (CPA) to the
De;partmen'l within 120 days-after the dose of the Contractor's fiscal
year; conducted in accordance with the requirements of 2 CFR Part 200,
Subparl F of the Uriiforrh Administrative Requirements. Cost Principles,
and Audit Requirements for Federal awards. ■

16.6. If Condition B or'Condition C exists, the Contractor shall submit an
annual financial audit performed by an independent CPA within 120
days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal year;

16.7. In addition to. and not In any way in limitation of obligations of the
Contract, it Is understood and agreed by the Contractor that the
Contractor shall be held-liable for any state or federal audit exceptions
and shall return to the Department all payments made under'the
Contract to which exception has been taken, or which haVe been
disallowed becau.se of such an exception. .

Office of PubBc Guardian GxJiMC CortudwifttUah^!
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

the Venddr'identiried in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sectipns.5151*5160 pfthe Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-696. Tille V. Subtille D; 41 .
U.S.C. 701 et seq.), and further-agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 end .1.12 of the General Provisions execute the folbw'thg Certiricalion:

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE • CONTRACTORS

This cetlrfication is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Oryg-Free
Workplace Act of 1968 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V. Subtitle 0; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31,
1983 regulations were emended and published as Part II of (he May 25,1990 Federal Register (pages
.21661-21691), and'require certificelibn by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-.
contractors), prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub'-grantees and sub<ontractors) that Is a Slate
may elect to nnake one certification to the Department in each federal fi.scal year in lieu of ceitincates for
each grant during the federal nscal year covered by the .certincalion. The .certificate set out below, is a
material representation of fact upon which reiiarice is placed wheri the agericy awards the. grant. False
certification or viblalion of the certiricalion shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or .
(ermiriatlon of grants, or governm'ent wide suspension or debarrrient. Contractors using this form should
send it to: .

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Hurhan Services
129 Pleasant Street,
C'oficord, NH 03301-650,5

1. ' The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:
1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful mapufacture, distribution,

dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance Is-prohibiled in the grantee's
workpla.ce and s'pCcifying the actions that will be la.ken against employees for viola.tior) of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free av/areness program (p inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of mainlaining a drug-free workplace;
1.2.3. Any availoble drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
1.2.4. The pehatlies'thal may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations

occurring In the workplace;
1.3. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in (he.performance of (he grant be

given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);'
1.4. Nc.tifying the employee In the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of

employment under the grenl, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of (ho stalemeni; and
1.4.2.' Notify the employer in iM-ilihg of his or her conviction for a violation of a crirninal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no (ater than five calendar days after-such
.  conviction;

1.5. Notifying .(he egency'ln writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice unde.r
subparagra'ph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receivirig actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide nollce, including .position tille, to eve^ grant
officer on whose grant activity (he convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency

Extiibii 0 -• CertWcollon regarding Drug Free Vendor Iniiloli
Workplace RcQulicmenlj •/ c > >
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has designat'ed a central point for the receipt of such nottees. Notice shap include the
identincatloh numbefts) of each effected grent;

t.6. Taking one of (he foOoxving actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2. with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and Including

termjnetion, consistent with fhe requirements of the Rehabilitation Ad of 1973, as
amertded; or

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily In a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved (or such purposes by a Federal, Slate, or local health,
law enforcemerii, or other appropriate agency;

.1.7. Making Q good faith effort to continue to mainlGin a drug>freeworkploco through .

implernenlalidn of paragraphs 1.1,1.2.'1.3.1.4.1.5. and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the sitefs) for (he performance of work done In
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, oily, county, stale, zip code) (list each location)'

Check □ if there are workplaces on file that are. not ideniirred here.

Vendor Name:

'P
Date Name/ ) ^

TIHe: ^
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gERTIFtCATlON REGARDING LOBBYING

The Vendor'identified in Section l .3 of the' penerel Provisions agrees to comply wilh the provisions of
Section 3t9 of Public Law 101-121. Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, end
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as kJeniified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provtstons execute the following Certirication;

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE • CONTRACTORS

Progrems (indicate applicable program covered): ■
'Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
•Child Support Enforcemci^l Program under Title IV-D
•Social Services Block Grent Program under Title XX
•Medicaid Program under Tttle XIX
'Community Services Block Grant under Title VI
'Child Care Development Block Grenl under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the t>edl df his or her knowledge and belief, (hat:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to ■
8r»y person for Influencing or attempting to Influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress In
connection wilh the awarding of any Federal cor\lf0ct, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modirrcalion of any Federal corvlraci, granl. loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention-
sut^ranlee or subcontractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
■  influencing or attempllng to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of CongresSj^
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in cbnneclion-wilh this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub
contractor), the'undersigned shall complete and submll-Standard Form.LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its Instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibil E-l.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certificetiori be Included in the owerd
document for sub-awards at ell tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, end conlmcts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material represenlalion of lad upon which reliance was placed when thlsTransaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
iransaclion Imposed by Seclion 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Aiiy person who fails 16 fite-tho required.
certtficalton shall be subject to a civil penally of not less than $10,000 and not more than 3100,000 for
each such failure. ■

Vendor Name: C>fP;o: cP ?oh>\iL
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CERTIFICATION-REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION

AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS-

The Vendor idenlifted in' S^ion 1.3 of the Generarprovisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of Ihe'Pr'esident, Execut'ive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Det)3rmenl,
Suspension.-and Other Responsibility Mailers, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections '1.11 end'1.42 of Ihe General Provisions execute the f^lowing
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION
1. By signing ond submitting this proposal (contract). Ihe prospective primary partlclpant-ls providing the'

certification sel'out below.

2. The inability of a person to provide the cerlification required below will hot necessarily result in denial
of particlpdlion in this covered transaction.- If;necessary. the' pro$pec|iye participant, shall Submit an
e'x^lanslion of yitSy it cannot provide the .certification. The cerlification or explanation will be
considered In connection with the NH Department of Heailh and Human Services' (OHHS)
determination whether.to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary

• participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify sudh person from participation in
this transaction.

3. The certjncat|pn-|n this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when OHHS determined.to enter into this transaction. If il is later determined that the prospective
prirnary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other iBrhedies
-available to the Federal Goverrtmeni. DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.--

4. The prospective primary p^rlic^ant shad provide immediale whtten notice to (he DHHS agency to
whom this 'pro;^sel (contract) is submilled if at any time the prospective primary particip'aiil learns
that its certification was e^oneous when submi.ited dr has become erroneous t^'y reason of changed
cifcumslances. • .

5. The terms "covered Iranseclion." "debarred.' "suspended," 'ineligible,' 'lower tier covered
transaction," 'participant,' "person;* 'primary covere.d transaction,' "pnncipal." 'propos.aj," .qnd
'volunld'rily excluded," as used in this clause, have the meanings set out In' the Definitions and
Coverage sections of (he rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part .76. Sep.the
attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary parlicipant agrees by submiuing'this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction ije entered into, it shall r^ot knowingly ehter Into 'ar^y.lower tler c'o'yered
transaction with a person who is debarred,' suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in' this covered transaction, uriless authorized by OHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that 11 will Include the '
clause tilled 'Certification Regarding Debarmenl, Suspension. Ineligibility end Voluntary Exclusion •
Lower Tier Covered Transactions," provided by DHHS, without modification, in ail lower tier covered
transactions end in all solicilalions for lovver tier covered iransaclions.

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certilicalion of a prospective participant in.a
tower tier covered transaction that il is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily'excluded
frorh the covered transaction, unless II Knows that the certification-Is erroneous. A participant may
decide the me.lhod and frequency by which it determines the eligibilily of its principals. Each
particlpa.nl m'ay, but is opt required to. check the Nonprocu'remenl List (of.excluded parlies).

9. Nothing contained In (he foregoing shall t>e construed to require establishment of a system of records
in.order I'd render in good faith (he certificalion required by this cla.u'se. The knowledge and

ExhIM F-C0<1>riuUon Regtidlne OtbtrmcnI. Sutpentlon Vendor imtlalv ^
And Other R'eiporutbDily Mftllen . / ^ - -k
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information of o participertt is not repuired to exceed thai which Is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.-

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these inslmctions. if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, Ineligible, or volunlaniy excluded from' participation In this transaction, in

■  addition to other remedies available (o (he Federal government, DHHS may terminate (his transaction
for causa or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS
11. The prospective primary participant cenifles (o the best of its knowledge end belief, that It and Its

principals:
11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment. declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal deparlmeni or agency;
11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had

8 civil judgment rendereid against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining,-attempting to obtain, or perlormlng a public (Federal, Slate or local)
transaction or a contract ur^er a public Iransaclion; violation of Federal or Slate ar^litrust
statutes or rammission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false sialements. or receiving stolen property;

11.3. are not presenlly indicted for-otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (l)(b)
of this cerlificalion; and

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or niore public
transactions (Federal. State or local) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant Is unable to certify to any of the slelemenis In this .
cartincatlon, such prospective participanl shall atlflch an explanellori to this proposal (contract).

-  .--V-.t#'"-

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS

13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant; as
deHned in 45 CFR Part 76, certirias to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:
13.1. are not presenlly debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or.

voluntarily excluded from participation in this iransaclion by any federal depaftriieni or agency.
13.2. where the prospeclive lower tier participant is unaWe to certify to any of the above, such

prospective participant shall attach.an expianalion to this proposal (conlracl).

14. The prospeclive lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposel (contract) that it will
Include this clause emitted Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension. Ineliglbilily, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions.' without modification In all lower tier covered
transactions and in ell solicitalions for lower tier covered transactions.

Vendor Name:

WtSL- P tDate
Title:

'1

•Pt)
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CERTIFiCATiON OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTiS PERTAiNING TO
FEDERAL NONDISCRiMINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND

WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS "

The Vendor Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees tiy signature of the Contractor's
representative es Identified In Sections 1.11 and 1:12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

Vendor will cctriiply, end will require any subgrahlSes or sutxon'tractors lo compty. with any applicable
federal nondlsctimlnaiion requirements, which may Include:

• the pmnlbus Crime Cpnircl end Safe Streets Act of 1968,(42 U.S.Q. Section 3789d) which prohlbHs
recipients of federal funding under this-slatule from discriminating, either in eniployment practices or In
the delivery of services or berwfits, on the basis of race, color, religion, naliooal origin, end sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment opportunity. Plan;
r the Juvenile.Justlce Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5572(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligallons of-lhe Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute ere prohibited frorh discriminatirig, either in ernployment practices or In (hd delivery of services or
benenis.,on the basis of race, cpldr, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
EmploymenVOppoftunity Plan requirements;
• the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 200Pd. which prohibits recipients of federal financiel
assistance from discriminating on the basis.of racBi col.or, or national origin in any program or activity):

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973! ([29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients oif Federal financial"
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard lo employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or ̂ (ivlty;

- the Aniericans with Disabilities Act of'i 990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination end ensures equal opportunity for persons with' disabililies in employment. Stale and local
government services. 4)ublic accommodat'rons, commercial facilities, end transportation;

• the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681.1683.1685-86). which prohibits
discrinilnation on the bails of sex in federally assisted education prograrns;

- the Age Discrimination Act of 19.76 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs .or activi'ties receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination;

- 28 C.F.R. pi. 31 (U.S. Deparlmenl.of Justice Regulalfons - OJJOP Grant Prograriis); 28 C.F.R. pi. 42
(U.S. Oeparlment of Justice Regulations - Nondiscrirhinalion; Equal Em'ptoymerit Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Ex.eculive Order No. 13279 (equal pi^Qtec.lion of the .lavys for faith-based and community
organizations): Executive Order No. 13559. which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based end neighborhood organizations;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Departrnenl of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment,for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorjza.lion
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239. enacted January i2.2013) the Piloi Program for
Enhancerrienl of Conlfacl Employee Whistleblower Protections,- which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection wiilvfederal grants end contracts.

The certificate set out below Is e material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. Fal.se ceililicalion or violation of the certificalipn shall be grounds for'
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarment. , ' .

E«hiDitG

Vendor iniilcts
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In the event a Federal or Stale court or Federal or Stale administraiive 8§ency makes a finding of
dlscfimirtalion after a due process hearing on the grour^s of race, color, religion, naltortal origin, or'sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within ,the Department of Health and Human-Services, end
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

'The Vendor Idehtified in Section 1,3 of the General Provisions agrees by signoliire of the Contractor's
representative as idenllfied in Sections 1.il end l.l2of ihe.General Provisions, to execute the following
certificalion;

I.' By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Vendor agrees to comply with the provisions
.indicated ebOve. •

Ver>dor Name

I  •

Dais ■ Y .

Pfe£5iDe>sr

Exhibit C
•  Vendor Wiisb
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SM6KE

Public Lew 103-227, Part C • Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also knowr> es the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an enlityand used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, .day care, education,
Or library services to children under the'age of 16. If the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through Slate or local govemments. by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or-Medicaid funds, and portions cf fecllilles used for Inpatient drug or alcohol treatmenl. Failure
to'comply with the provisions of the law mey result In the imposliion of a civil monelery penally of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an adminislrative-compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Vendor idenliried-in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
rcpre'sdnlatlve as Idenlified m Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute foliowing
certiflcalioh; • ' *

'1. 8y signing and submitllrig this .contract, the Vendor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply with
ell applicable prowslons of Public Law 103-227, Part C. known as.Ihe Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Vendor Name: Office ©r

?• c-jw-—
D»le Na'T,?; O

ExnlDli H - CeiDficJtion Rega'rdlng Vendor InBlah,
gnvJfOomenialTob'accoSmoko
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HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABIUTY AND ACCOUNTABILITY ACT
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contraclor identified In Section 1 .'3 of the General Provisions of the Agreennent agre.es to
cofiipty with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act. Public Law 104-1G1 and ;
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Infqrmalion, 45
CFR Parts 16P and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein. 'Business
Associate" shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
recelvei use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement anc/ "Covered
Entity* shall mean the State of'New Harhpshlre. Department of Health and Human Services.

(1) Definitions.

a: 'Breach' shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" In section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

b; 'Business Associate" has the meaning given such term In section 160.103 of Title 45, Code
of Federal Regulations. •'

c. 'Covered Entity" has the meanino given such term in section 160.103 of Title. 45.
Code of Federal Regulatlohs.

d. 'Deslonated Record Set'shall have .the same meaning as the term 'designated record set'
in 45 CFR Section 164.50.1.

•e. "Data AdoreQalion" shall have the same meaning as the te.rm "data aggregation": in 45 CfR
Section 164.501.

f. "Health Care OoeraHons" shall have the same meaning as the term "health care operalions"
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

0. 'HiTECH Act" means the Health.Information Technology for Economic and. Clinical Health
Act. TllleXIII, Subtitle D. Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of

■  2009. ' ' . . .

h.- 'HIPAA'.means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Acl.ol 1996, Public Law
1p4-19l and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Indivlduallyldenlifiable Health ■
Informialipn, 45 CFfl Parts 160.162 and 164 and amendmenls'therelp.

1. 'Individuar shall haVe the same meaning as the term "individuar In 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFRSeclion'l64.501(g).

j. 'Privacy Rule' shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Heallh
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164. promulgated under Hlf^AA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. 'Protected Health Infbfmat'ion" shall have the same rneaning as lhe term 'protected heallh
•  •jriforrnation' In 45 CFR Section 160.103, limiied to the informali'cn created or received by

Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.

3/2014 EsNtfll Contraclof InHJnb
HeoUh ln$ursflC4 PortBbiDiyAct
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I- 'Reouired bv Law" shall have the same meaning as the term Required by law" In 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

ni. "Secrelarv'shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her designee.

n. 'Security Rule* shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CF.R Part .l64.'Subpart C, and amendments thereto. -

0. 'Unsecured Protected Health Information' means protected health Information that is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable; or indecipherable to unaulhorized individuals .and Is developed or endorsed by
a standards devieloping organization .that is accredited by the/American National Standards
Institute.

p. Other Definitions - All terrns not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning-
established under 45 C.F.R..Parts 160,162 and 1^, as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH

Act.

(2) Business Associate USe and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

q. Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) excepl.as rea.sonably necessary to provide the services outlined under"
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees arid agents, shall not use,- disclose, maihtaiii or transmif

.  PHI In any rnanner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or,disclose PHI;
i. For the'proper mariagemeht and admi.nistration of the Business Associate;
II. - .As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth In paragraph d. below; or
III. For data aggregation-purposes for the health care operations df Covered

. Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party. Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held conndenti.alty. and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for Ihe purpose for which it was
-disclosed to the third party; and (il) an agreement from such third party to .notify Business
Associate; in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy. Security, and -Breach .Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI. to the extent it has obiain'e.d

- knowledge of.such.breach. '

d. The Business Associate shalVnot, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI In response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief.- If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Business

3/20t4 extVWll . ContfDClof InlliBb
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Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedjes..

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associateihat Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over ̂ d above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions end.shail not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safieguards.

(3) Obiiaatlons and Activities of Business Associate. .

a, The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected

'  .health information not provided for by the Agreerhent-induding breaches of unsecured,
protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an irhpact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity,

b. The Business Associate shall immediately perform,a.risk assessment when It becornes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to':

0  The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of idenlifiers and the likeliho'od of re-idenlification;

0 The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
dlscipSLire was made; v .

o Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed
0- The exlenl to which the risk to the protected health information has been

mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the.risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the ftndlngs of the risk assessment in wriltng to the
Covered Entity.

■c. The Business Associate shall comply'with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and
Breach Notiricatioh Rule.

d. Business Associate-shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Enllty to (he Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

e.- Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions'on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (1). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a .direct third party beneficiary of tlie; Contrsiclor's busines.s. associate
agreemenis with Contractor's intended business associates, who will be receiving PHI

3/2014 6*hlblll Conlroclof tnilials
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pursuant lo this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shall t>e governed by standard Paragraph #'13 of the standard ■
contract provisions (P*37) of this Agreement forthe purpose of use and disclosure of.
protected health information.

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity.
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours al Its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine •
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Eiility, -
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the .
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, lo an individual In order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

h. Within (en (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
.amendment of PHI ot a record about an Individual contained In a Designated Record
Set, the Busmess Associate shall mat^e such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and 'Inc.orpprale any .such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 46 CFR Seclion 164.526.

i. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to
such disclosures a? would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
Individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520.

|. Witliln ten (10) business days of receiving a written request frorii.Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures'of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
lo Covered Entity such Information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance vyiih 45 GFR
Section 164.528.

k. In the event any individual reque.sts access to, amendment of. or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity'. Covered Entity shaH have the
responsibility o.f responding lo.forwarded requests. However. If forwarding the
-Individual's-requesl to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Ruje. the Business Associate
shall Instead "respond to tt^e, individual's request as required by such law and notify .
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

I. Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreemehl, for any reason, the .
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or receive.d by the Business Associate In connection with the
.Agreement, dnd sha'il not retain any copies or back-up tapes of sOch PHI. If return, or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in

•  the Agreeme.f^t, Business Associate shall continue to .extend the protections of the
Agreement, lo suph PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those,
purposes that make the return Of destruction infeasible, for-so long as Business
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i
Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate-destroy any or ail PKi, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has t>een destroyed.

(4) ObllQatlons of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any chartges or limitation(s) In Its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes In. or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by Individuals whose PHI may be used or'
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant td 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,-
to the e)hent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI. ■ ,

fS) ' Termfnatlon for Cause

'  \n addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
- Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agre'emenl upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement s.et forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered EnHly nnay either immediately *
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
elleged breach within a.timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible. Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.'

(6) fi^isceflaneous

a. Oefinliions and Reaulaton/ References. All terms used; but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terrns in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time.' A reference in the Agreement, as arnended to include this Exhibit I, to
a Section In the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as In effect or as
amended.

b. .. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary'to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with th.e changes in the requirements of HiPAA. the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state (aw.

c. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges thai It has no ownership righls
with respect to the PHI provided by or created oh behalf of .Covered Erility.

d. ' Inleroretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity In the Agreement shall be 'resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA. the Privacy and Security Rule.

3/20M ExNWll Contfaadr Inltiala ^
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6. SeorcQallon. (f any term or condition of this Exhibit I or (he application thereof to any
person(s) or cIrcumstarKe Is held Invalid, such Invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be Qiven effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of (his Exhibit I are declared severabie.

f. Sunrlval. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI. return or
.  destruction of PHI. extensions of the protections of (he Agreement in section (3) I. the .

defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e end Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms end conditions (P-37). shall sunrive the termtnaiion of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, (he parties hereto have duty executed this Exhibit 1.

Oepar^stepi of Health endjjyman Services OfPtcC /ob/jc
Nan»e-ol the ContractorSta

of Authorized Representative Srg

'si-/ "

N^e or Auinoiu:e<

rSdorjJe.
N^ppe of Authorized

of Authorized Representative

ata- P
 R^esentatjye ̂ Name of Authorized Representative

Title of Authorized Representative Title of'Authorized Representative

Date Dale'
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CERTIFICAtlON REGARDING ■THE-FEDEf^L FUNDING iACCoQNTABilftY-ANb-TRAhfSPA
ACTIPFATAV COMPLIANCE '

The Federal Funding Accounlabilily and Transpafency Act (FFATA) requires prime ai^rdMS of Individual
Fdderal-Qrants equal-tp'.or-grealei'.than $25.00p'.and awardedon 0/.after October '1..2'010. tdieppirfph
data related to execyllve compehsatipn arid as.spcjMad. nrsWIersu&rgrarils of $25.,000 dr.more. If the
Initial avwrd is below $.25..6o6 but sub.sequehl grant modiflcaUons result In p lbtal BN^rd equal,to or over
.S25.d00. the eward l5-sub)eci to the F.frATA repofliripirequirementsi as.pf.the dale pf'the-award.. ■»

■ In accordance" wilh-2 Cf^R-Part 170 (Repbrilng.Sub^ard and..Exe'c.utlve.Cpmpe.n5aitlqrj Infdrmalion). the
Oepartmerit of hieallh.and.Humdn.^rvicejl^^ the folloyring lnf6rmat;ionfo"r:3.riys.ubaWarcl.orcontraci award.subject.to the,FFATA rapodlrigyequlreriPients: ■■ < •
l .-^ame'df enUty. V '
2. •jyiibuht of'aw^d ■ . -
3. Funding agency
4.' NWC'Scdde.for cbnlTBcls/C.RDA program number for gr^ts - ..
•-5. "Program source ' . '
6. -Award title descriptive of-the purpose of the furiding action
7. Localion of the entity
0. Principle place of pertorrnance

■0. . Unique iderjlifierpf the eritity (bUN • •• .
■ fOj Tdui-cdmp'ehspiioharid.namds.of-lhelbpfi^^ . •10.1V More lhan-8p% of anrtuaj gross reyenuDS ere frorn the Federal gqyemmenl. and those .

■. reveriues are Qrealer-'.ihari.;$25M.anriua!ly and •
10.2.. CompenUtiori"irifomfiaU6hisnot-alr.ca<Jyayi8ilablelhroughreportln9totheSEC. ,

Prime grant'recipients must subinlt FFAJA.rdquired data by the end.'of ih.e month; plus 30 days. In which
. the avvard or award .a'rifiendrii'ent ijs made. • ,
Thd Contractor Identified in ^ctlbn •i;3 of the General Provisions agrees to.comply with the.proylslon6_of
The FederafFundlng Accouhtabilily and .Transparency Act, p"ubflc"l:aw".109:282 and.Pub''<^ •?;"
•arid 2 CFR Pari;170 (Reportlng S'ubaw'ard 8nd'Execuli\ra.CompefisaUo.nJnf6imallo^ .
lo'tibve the Corilractof^s'repre'senlative.-es Identified in Sections' l.ivand 1.l.2.pf the General Provisions ■
.execute the fblldwl"n9 Ccrtificaiipn:: ■ . . • . uLi
"the'belbw named CprilrBCtori-egrqes'to p.rpyide needed Infpfrnpllon as ouHlned above to the Nn
DcpdrtmeKi of Health^and.Humah'Serylces e.ridTo cornply with ail .applicable provisions Of ihe.FederaiFlnariclal^counlablfity and Transparency Act.

ConlraCtor Name:' " (f

Dale
Title: o "" i

cuomviioris

EihlW,J 7,Cortlflc«U6n R^ardl.nfl»ho.,FederDl Funtfng ' CoftlfactorJftRjap. , ,.lAecouMiblUl'yAn'dTiVn»p«riricyAd'tFFATA)C.ompllanc« • V' '
•  ■p69o1?t2.
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FORMA

As .the Conlreclor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, 1 certify that Ihc responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The pUN§ number for your entity is:

2. tn your business or organlratton's praceding compteted fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in
loans grants sub-grants, and/of cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 pr more In annual

•  gross'rVenuosfromU.S.federalcontracts.-subconirecis.to.ans.grenls.-subgranls.and/Of
cooperative agreements?

NO YES

If the answer to #2 above Is NO. stop here

.  jf the answer to #2 at)0ve is YES. please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to Information aboui the compensation of the .
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or l^d) of the Securill^es
.Exchange-Act of 1934 (15 U.S'.C.78m(a). 78o{d)) or section 8104 of the internal Revenue Code of
1986?

NO YES

If the answer to #3 above is YES. slop here

If the answer to F3 above Is NO. please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensatcd officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name:.

Name:.

Name:,

Name:

Name:

Amount:.

Amount:.

Amount:

Amount:

Arhounl:

cmow&'tion)

Edtlbli j - Cortincfltton Rogatdlrig iho F.odcal Funding
AccoonlablOty And Tianjpofdncy Afl (FFATA) CompIlonM

Paga 2 o> 2
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OHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Definitions

The following terms may be reftected and have the described rneaning In this documerii:

1. 'Breach' means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
.  unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring, to

situations' where persons other than authorized users and for an other than
authorized, purpose have access or potential access to personally identifiable
Information. Whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
Information,' Breach* shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section

■  1S4;402 of Title 45. Code of Federal Regulations.

2. "Computer Security Incident" shall have the same meaning 'Computer Security
Incident' in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Corhpuler Security Incident
Handling Guide, National Institute-of Standards and Technology. U.S. Department
of Commerce..

3. "Cohfidential Information' or "C.onridentlal Data" means all confidential Information
disclosed by one party-to the other such, as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal information including without Hmiialion. Substance
Abuse Treatment Records,'- base Records, Protected Health Information and
Personally Identifiable Information.

Confideiitial Information also includes any and all informatioh owned or ma.naged by
the Slate of NH - created, received frorh or on" behalf of the Department of Health 6nd
Human ■ Services (DHHS) br accessed in the course of performing contracted
services • of which" collection, disclosure, pfpteclion, and disposition Is governed by

■  state or federal law or regulation'. This information includes, but is not iirriiled to
.  Protected Health Information (PHI). Personal Information (PI), Personal Financial

Information (PFI). Federal Tax Informatioh (FTI). Social Security "Numbers (SSN).
Payriient Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential Information.

4. 'End User" means any person or entity (e.g.. conlractor. contractors employee,.-
business associate, siibcontraclor. other downstream user, e.tc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act ol 1996 and the
regulations "promulgated thereunder.

6. 'Incidenr means an act (hat polenliaily viplales an explicit or implied security policy,
which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized pccess to.a
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized-use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge. Irtslruclion. or
consent. Incidents Include the loss of data through "theft or device misplacement, toss

■  or misplacement of hardcopy documents, arid misrouling of physical or electronic
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mall, all of which may" have the polential to put the data at risk of unauthorized •
access, use. disclosure, modification ordesthjclion.

7. "Open Wireless Network" means any network or segment of a network that is-
not designated by the Stale of New Hampshire's Dep.artment of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) will be considered an open

• network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI, PFI,
PHI or confidentiarOHHS data.

8. "Pefsonal Informalioni" (or "PI") means information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an. Individual's identily, such as their name, social security number, persorial
information as defined iii New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19, biomelric records, etc..
alone, or when combined with diher personal or Identifying Information which is linked
or linkable to a specific individual, su.ch as date and place of birth, rriolher's maiden
name, elc.

9. "P.rivacy Rule' shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 150 and 164, prornulgated under HIPAA by the Unil^
States Deparlmenl of Health and Hum'an Services.

10. "Protected Health Information" (or THO has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of "Protected Health Information' in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at-45 C.F.R. •§
160,103..'

11. "Security Rule" shall mean Ihe Security Standards for the Proteclior) of Eleclroriic-
Protected Health Inforrhation at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C. and amendments
thereto.

12: 'Unsecured. Protected Heallh Informallon' means Protected Health, information that is
not'secured by. a technology standard lhat .renders Prol.ecl.ed Health. Information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to una.uthorized Individuals and is
developed or endorsed by .8 standards developing organization that is accredited by
the American National Standards Institute.

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and .Disclosure of Confidenlial lnformation.

1. The Contractor must not use. disclose, mainlain or-transmit Confidential Information
except as reasonably necessary as oullined under this Contract. Further, Coh'traclor.
including but not limited to all Us direclors, officers, employees and agenls, must not
use. disclose; maintain or-transmit PHI in any manner thai would conslitule a violation
of the Privacy and,Secu.rity R.ule.

2. The Conlractor must not disclose any Oo.rifidential Information in response to. a

\
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request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, in response to a
subpoena, etc.. without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
reSlncllons over and above those uses of disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
.additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI In violation of such additional'
restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHiS Data or derivative:there from disclosed to an End
User must only be us.ed pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this .Contract-may not be used for
any other puipQ'ses that are not indicated In this Contract.

6. "The Contractor agrees to grant access to the dala to the authorized representatives
of DHHS (or the purpose of inspecting to confirm corripliance with the terms of this

.. Contract.

II. fVIETHODS DF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Appli'cati'ori Encryption. If End User Is transmitting DHHS. data containing
Conridential Data between applications, the Corilfactof attests the applications have
been 'evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said
application's encryption bapabllities ensure secure transmission via the Internet,

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. Erid User may t}6\ use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Email. ErxJ User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if
email Is encrvoted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information.

4  Encrypted Web Site. If Er?d User" is employing the Web to transmit Confidential - '
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used end the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts "data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use Tile
hosting services, such ■ as Dropbox or Google Cioud Silage, to transmit
Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mall S.ervice. End User may only Iransrfiit .ConHdentiai Data via certified ground
.mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User Is employing portable devices to transmit
Confldentlai Data said devices rtiust be encrypted and password-protected.

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may ribt transmit Conrideritiai Data via an open
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wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

fl. . Remote User Communication. .If End User Is employing remote communication to
access or transrhit Confideritial Data, a Virtual private network (VPN) must be

,  Installed on the End-User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which Information vAW be
transmitted or accessed.

10, SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), ailso knoWn as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data; End User will
structure' the 'Foi.der and access privileges to prevent - inappropriate disclosure of
information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for Iransmitting Confidential Data will
be-coded for -24-hour auto-deletion cyde (I.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24
hours). . ^

11. Wireless peyices. if End User Is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data rh'ust be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of Information.

III. RETENTION AND D.ISPOSmON OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Conlraclor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for (he duration of (his
Contract. After such'time, the Contractor will h.ave 30 days to'destroy the data anct^sny

-  derivative in whatever form II may -exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end. the'parties must:

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store,' transfer o.r process data collected in
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United

States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the Implemeniallon of
clpud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities.-and includes backup
data arid Disaster Recovery locatioris.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure, proper security monitoring capabilities are in
place to detect potential security events th.at can impact State of NH systems
end/or Depariment confidential information for contractor provided-.systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide securily awareness and educatio.n for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information,

4. The Contractor agrees to retain-all electronic and hard co'ples of Confidential Data
In a secure location and Identified in section IV. A;-2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored In a Cloud must be in a
FedRAMP/HITECH complianl solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulalions regarding the-privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, 'the' latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker, anti-spam, anti^spyware, and anli-malware uiililies. The environment, as a
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whole, mu&t have aggressive intru.sibn-delection and rtrewall protection.

6k Tlie Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's
• Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
infrastructure.-

•  «* «

B. Dispbsilion

1. "if the Corilractbr will maintain any Confidential Inlormatton on its systems (or its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and vnll
obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destrbyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and .or disaster
recoveiy operattojis. When no longer in use. electronic media containing Slate of
New Hanipshlfe data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure" wipe program
in" accordance with Industry-accepted standards' for secure deletion arid rnedia
sanilizatlon, or otherwise physically destroying the media - (for "example,
"degaussing) as described in NlSt Special Publication .eOO.-SB, Rev 1, Guidelines
.for Media Sanitization, National Instil.ule of Standards and technology, U. .S.
beparlmehi of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify In writing at
time of the data destructidri, and will provide.writlen certification to the Department
upon request. The written ceftlficaiion will Include all details necessary to

. demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requj.remehts will be jointly
evaluated by l.he State and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor iagrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of- the termination of this
Contracl, Contractor agrees to, completely destroy all etdctrdnic Confidential Data
by rrieans pf data erasure, also knoym as secure data wiping.

IV, PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Coritraclor agrees to safegCiard thfe DHHS Data received under this Cpntracl. and any _
derivative data or fiies. as follows;

-  1." The Contractor" will maintain proper security controls to protect Department .
ccnfidenliaUhformatiori collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in lhe delivery
of contracted services.

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential information throughout the Infofmation lifecycle, where applicable, (from

■  creation, iransformallon. use,- storage and secure desifuctipn) regardless of the
rhedia used to store the data (i.e.. tape, disk, paper, etc.).
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3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication arxJ access controls to
.  contractor'systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential information
where applicable.

A. The Cpnlractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are'in place to
detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/or'
Departrherit confidential Information for contractor provided systems.

5. the Contractor will provide regular security awareness arid education for Its .End
Users In support of protecting Department confidential information.

■  6. if the'Contractor will'be sub-conlracling any core functions of the'engagement
supporting the services for Slate of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an Internal .process or processes that defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum
rnatch (hose for the Contractor, Including breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
S.tate of New Hampshire and Department system access and.authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of

. obtaining- and maintaining access to any Oepartrrienl system(s). Agreernents'O^itl be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable-sUb-contractors prior to
system access being authorize.

8. If the Department determines the Contractor Is a Business-Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement

.  (BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with (he
agreement.

'9. The Contractor will work with (he Department at lls .request to-complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey Is to enable the Department and -
Contractor to monitor for any clianges in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that rnay ■
occur over the life of.lhe Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time ai trie Departmerits discretion iwlth agreement by
ttie Contractor, or jhe Department may request the survey be. completed When the
scope of the ehgagement-betweert the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Conlraclpf will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
•  or Department data offshore or outside the .boundaries of ihe United States unless

prior express, written consent is obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership merriber within ipe Deparlmenl.

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Coritra'ctpr shall
make efforts to investigate (he causes of the breach, promptly take lineasures to
pf.ev.erit future breach, and rnirilmize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.

' The Slate shall recover from the Contractor ail costs-of response and recovery from
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Ihe breach, including but not limiled to: credit moniloring services, mailing costs end
costs associated with website and telephone call center-services necessary due to
•the breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Co'nfidenlial Information, and must in all other respects •
maintain the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and-scope that is not less
than the level and scope of reqCiirehients applicable to federal agencies, including,
but not limi'ted to. provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 5"52a). DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b). HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for Indivldyaily identifiable health
Information and as applicable under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical S3f®9uards to protect the confidenlialily of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that Is" not less than ihe level and scope of security requirements
eslablished by the State of New Hampshire. Department of. Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https:/Avww.nh.gov/doit/vehdofAndex.hlm
for the* Oepartmenl of Information Technology policies, guidelines; standards, and
procurement information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintairi a docurhenled .breach notification and Incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the Slate's Privacy pfticer arid the
State's Security Officer of any security breach Immediately, at the email addresses
provided .in Section VI. This includes a confidential Information breach, computer
security incident, of suspected breach which effects or includes any State of New
Hampshire systems that connect to the Slate of New Hampsliire network.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidenlial Data obtained under this
Contract to only Those authorized End Users who need such DHHS .Data to
perform their official duties in connection with purposes identified In this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensureThat all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section JV A. above,
Implemented to. protect Conrrdential Information that Is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or Inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at all times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI. PI. or
PFI are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only If encrypted and being
sent"to and being received by email addresses of perso.ns authorized to
receive such informalio'n.
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6. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.

t. Confidential Information received under this Contract and Individually
tdenilfiabie data-derived from DHHS Data, must be stored In an area that .Is
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duly hours' as well as non-duty hours (e.g., door locks; card keys,
blometric idehliners, etc.).

g. only'authorized End Users may trahsmit'the Confidential Data, including any
derivative files containing personally identifiable inforrhatlon, and in all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when in transit,, at rest, or .s^en
stored on portable medla.as required In section IV above.

h. -in .all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, 'used and
disclosed' using'appropriate .safeguards,- as determined by a risk-based
assessment of the circumstances involved-

I. understand that their user credent'ials (user name and password) must not be
shared wllh anyone. End-Users will keep .their credential Informatlori secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through
a-third party application.

Contractor is responsible for oversight and cdmpHance of their Erid User^. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections to rri.onitor compliance with ^is
Contract, including the privacy arid security requirements provided in hefeiri, -HIPAA,
and other.applicable laws and Federal regulations until such lirrie. the Cdnfldehlial Data
Is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify, the State's Privacy Officer a'nd Security Officer of any
Secvrlly Incidents and Breaches immediately, at the email addresses provided In
Section Vl..

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches Involving PHI In
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.'F.R. §§ 431.300 • 306. In addition to. and
notvrithslanding, Contractor's compliance with all applicable, obligations and procedures.
Cprilractdr's-proceduresmusl also address how the Contracior will:

1. Identify Incidents;

2. Determine if personally Identifiable information Is Involved in Incidents;

• 3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required In this Exhibit or P-37;

4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Iricidehls
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and

.  ■
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5. Delermine whether Breach notification is required- and. if so. identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different
options, and l)ear costs associated with the Breach notice as-well as any mitigation
measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that Impiicaie PI must be addressed and reported." as .
applicable, in accordance with NH RSA 359-C;20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS Privacy Officer:

DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov

B. DHHS Secufity Officer:

DHHSInformalioriSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov.
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